
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020) came into force on Saturday 4 April 2020 to enable 
councils to hold remote committee meetings during the 
Covid 19 pandemic period. This is to ensure local authorities 
can conduct business during this current public health 
emergency. 

This meeting will be held remotely under these regulations, 
via Zoom. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
* Reporting to Cabinet 

19 February 2021 
 

Dear Councillor 
 

 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL to be held on Tuesday 2 March 2021 at 7.30 pm via Zoom. 
 
 

Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Panel Members in accordance with Council Procedure 
Rules. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 
2020 (previously circulated).  
 

4.   ACTIONS UPDATE (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
which lists the actions from the last Panel meeting and their current status. 
 

5.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 14  
 

Public Document Pack



6.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.  
 

7.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to thirty minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

8.   AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 7 - 14) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Community) to provide an update 
on the council’s Affordable Housing Programme. 
 

9.   DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT FUNDING AND USE OF BETTER CARE FUND 
(Pages 15 - 20) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) on the proposed use 
of funding. 
 

10.   AIDS AND ADAPTATIONS POLICY (Pages 21 - 40) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) presenting the new 
Aids and Adaptations Policy which sets out the scope and criteria applied when 
assessing aids and adaptations requests for council housing.  
 

11.   RESPONSIVE REPAIRS SERVICE UPDATE (Pages 41 - 46) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) providing an update 
on the responsive repairs service. 
 

12.   WINTER GAS PLAN (Pages 47 - 48) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Housing and Communities) to provide an update 
on the Winter Gas Plan. 
 

13.   NOW HOUSING PERFORMANCE UPDATE (Pages 49 - 82) 
 

 Report of the Shareholder Group, Now Housing Limited; introduced by the Head of 
Housing Operations (the council’s advisor). 
 

14.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

15.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 16 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Paragraph 4 (consultations or negotiations relating to 
labour relations) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).  
 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  



 

PART II 
 

16.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIRMAN  
 

 
Circulation: Councillors N.Pace (Chairman) 

J.Boulton (Vice-Chairman) 
M.Birleson 
E.Boulton 
M.Cook 
A.Dennis 
 

M.Holloway 
T.Jackson-Mynott 
R.Lass 
H.Quenet 
F.Thomson 
 

 Co-opted Members:- 
Tenants’ Panel Representatives 
To be appointed 
 
Independent Representatives 
 
R.Paris   

 
 Corporate Management Team 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Services, 01707 357444 or email democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 

Part I 
Main author: A.Marston 
Executive Member: Nick Pace 
Not Specific Ward  

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 2 MARCH 2021 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

ACTIONS STATUS REPORT 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 In order to ensure that actions identified at meetings are completed, this 
report lists the actions from the meeting on 15 September 2020, those 
responsible for completing each action and its current status. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Members note the status of actions which were identified at the meeting 
of this Committee on 15 September 2020. 

Minute Action Responsible Status/ 
Date Completed 

 
54 

Affordable Housing 
Programme Update. 
 

11. Members enquired 
about the impact of 
planning changes on 
the Affordable 
Housing Programme 
in terms of Section 
106s 

12.  

Head of 
Service 
Community 
and Housing 
Strategy. 
 

The information was 
emailed to Members on 9 
October 2020. 
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Sian Chambers 
Executive Member: Nick Pace 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 2 MARCH 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITY) 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME UPDATE 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the council’s Affordable 
Housing Programme (AHP).  Updates are provided to this committee twice 
annually 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Members to note the content of this report 

3 Explanation 

3.1 On 4th December 2012, Cabinet agreed a range of methods to deliver the 
council’s Affordable Housing Programme (AHP) and that a monitoring report 
should be presented to this committee, setting out the budget and progress in 
delivering new affordable homes.  An overview of progress to date is attached at 
Appendix A and Appendix B. 

3.2 The AHP is managed via an officer project group which meets six weekly and 
overseen by a Steering Group, which meets quarterly.  The Executive Member 
for Housing and Community is a member of the Steering Group, which provides 
strategic direction, considers the budget and recommends any reallocation of 
funds between different delivery methods as required. 

3.3 A Delivery Strategy was agreed by members in 2019. 

Implications 

Legal Implication(s) 

3.4 The council has signed an agreement with the government to deliver the AHP 
using available Right to Buy receipts, in accordance with the rules in the 
agreement. 

4 Financial Implication(s) 

4.1 The budget for the programme is monitored through the normal budgetary control 
reports, which are reported to Cabinet on a quarterly basis.  The current budget 
for the programme in this financial year is £22.260m. 

5 Risk Management Implications 

5.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

5.2 There are no direct risks arising from this report, however the AHP has a risk 
management strategy in place which includes a Strategic Risk Register and an 
operational risk register associated with every project.  The Steering Group and 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



- 2 - 

Project Group monitor the risk registers and associated controls and mitigation 
plans. 

6 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

6.1 There are no implications arising from this report. 

7 Procurement Implication(s) 

7.1 There is a member Procurement Board in place to oversee any procurement 
activity associated with the AHP. 

7.2 There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

8 Climate Change Implication(s) 

8.1 The delivery of new affordable homes provides mechanisms for a range of 
products and initiatives that help reduce carbon emissions and tackle fuel 
poverty.  New homes are built to high standards that help address climate 
change concerns, including CO2, water and waste reduction; use of local labour 
and transport and modern methods of construction all consider the green 
footprint. 

9 Human Resources Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. 

10 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

10.1 The provision of good quality affordable homes has a positive impact on health 
and well-being. 

11 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

11.1 There is a communication strategy linked to the AHP 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Our 
Housing and specifically to the achievement of providing more affordable homes 
and is linked to a statutory requirement, under the Homeless Reduction Act  

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 
Name of author Sian Chambers 
Title Head of Community and Housing Strategy 
Date 27 January 2021 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

 Cabinet report 4th December 2012 

 Cabinet report 14th June 2016 – Strategic review of Affordable Housing Programme 

Appendices to be listed  

 Appendix A Affordable Housing Programme Overview 

Page 8



- 3 - 

 Appendix B Affordable Housing Programme Monitoring 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Appendix A 
Affordable Housing Programme 

PROJECT UPDATE 
 

Completions 

Chequersfield  
30 flats (18x 2BFs and 12x 1BFs) 
The scheme completed and was successfully handed over to the council.  The smaller block of 
12 properties was sold on to Now Housing in December.  Both blocks are fully occupied. 
 

Council Newbuild 

The Commons & Ludwick Way 

6x 3BHS and 4x 2BHS 

Planning approval subject to Section 106 Agreement to reinstate and maintain the area of 

hedgerow immediately behind the site in draft. Contractors FSG have been appointed.  Due to 

start on site in March 2021 

Haseldine Meadows (Spring Glen), Hazel Grove & Lockley Crescent 
11 x 2BHs; 2 x 3BHs; 1x 1BB 
Hazel Grove planning application has been approved; Haseldine Meadows and Lockley 
Crescent required a re-design due to rights of way and access issues and therefore will be 
resubmitted once suitable plans have been agreed.  
 
New Park Road 
3 x 2 bed houses. 
Off Site Manufacturers are currently being considered with a report to be taken to Cabinet for 
delegated authority to proceed with an OSM contractor to build the houses. 
 
Minster Close 
90 apartments for older people 
Contract with RG Carter in place, start on site 1st September. Piling and groundwork 
commenced in January 2021.  Scheme scheduled for completion in Summer 2022. 
 
Burfield Close 
43 units of temporary accommodation 
Planning application has been submitted and an outcome is anticipated in March 2021.  All 
permanent residents have been successfully moved on to alternative tenancies and the site is 
currently being used for temporary accommodation.  A joint procurement exercise will take 
place for Burfield Close and Howlands House. 
 
Howlands House  
72 units of temporary accommodation 
Planning submission consultation period ended and officers currently considering objections. 
New external lighting and ventilation scheme submitted. Planning Committee date to be 
advised.  This site will be linked with Burfield Close to procure a construction partner who will 
build out both sites. 
 
Queensway House 
Number of properties re-provided to be confirmed, once design work has been done. 
The team are currently focussing on the decant of the residential and commercial occupiers.  At 
the time of writing there were eight secure tenants and 12 residential leaseholders/private 
tenants resident in the block.  The next stage will be to engage architects to start working on 
design concepts. 
 
Ludwick Green 
14 one-bedroom flats 
An existing council block of eight properties that has major structural issues will be demolished 

Page 11



Classification: Unrestricted 

 

Classification: Unrestricted 

2 
 

and 14 new build properties will be provided.  The scheme has been fully decanted, and 
discussions are taking place on the design via the pre planning application process. 
 
Inspira House 
3x 1BFs 
Contractor working with council on design and submission of planning approval for 3 ground 
floor units  
 
 

Open Market Purchase 

26 properties completed this financial year, 41+ properties in the pipeline, with 20 of these 
expected to complete by end of financial year.  
 

New Opportunities 

 
Swallowfields 
20 flats (1BFs and Studios) 
Scheme identified as potential purchase for Now Housing with contractor on site. 20 flats 
including newbuild and refurbishment opposite Inspira House.  Expected completion in June 
2021. 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 12



Classification: Unrestricted

Cherry Way 4 Open Market Purchase Council direct purchases 
26

Elizabeth Close 3 Chequersfield
18

Sir Frederick Osborn 5
Total 44

Open Market Purchase 195

RP Open Market Purchase 4

Phase 1 (garage sites) 17

RP Open Market Purchase 1

Council newbuild 7

Council newbuild 22

Phase 2 (garage sites) 21

Council purchase Inspira House 54

Council newbuild 16

Council newbuild 7

council purchase Chequersfield 18

374

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Open Market Purchase 20 30 15 15 15 15

The Commons

4 x 2 bed houses

4

Ludwick Way

6 x 3 bed houses

6

Minster House 

90 flats, mix of 1 and 2 bed 

flats

90

Howlands House

72 units- shared units, 

bedsitting room hubs and 

disabled flats. 

Planning application submitted 72

Burfield Close

43 flats, 1 and 2 bed self 

contained and bedsitting 

room hubs

43

Ludwick Green 

14 one bed flats

14

Haseldine Meadows

6 x 2 bed houses, 1 x 3 bed 

house

7

Hazel Grove

2 two bed houses

2

Lockley Crescent

4 x 2 bed houses, 1 x 1 bed 

bungalow

5

High View On track 15

Inspira House

3 x 1BFs

On track 3

Swallowfield

20 homes (mix of studio 

flats and 1BFs)

On track 20

Link Drive / 1-9 Town Centre 38

New Park Street

3 x 2 bed houses

3

Queensway House 30

Birchwood House 8

Haymeads

12 flats 

12

Homestead Court 9

Welwyn Garden City 

bungalow site (A)

40

Howlands site 30

20 63 252 96 55 75

Completed units 374
Delivery Pipeline 561

Total 935

Appendix B - Affordable Housing Programme Funded Delivery 

On track

On track

Funding to WGCHA and B3 Living

On track (43 in conveyance, 

but expect to complete on a 

further 20 by year end)

Funding to Paradigm

Identification of low demand existing 

council sheltered stock and 

redevelopment

Funding to WGCHA

A mix of 2, 3 or 4 bed houses/flats for the 

council

Funding to WGCHA

On track

Total

Purchase of S106 obligation on council 

redevelopment

Council site, potential infill

Estates and Dev project; planning 

approval achieved; affordable 

housing being purchased via HRA

Initial feasibility underway

Further work required

Currently moving residents out of block, 

with a view to demolition and 

redevelopment

Completion of Units 2020/21

Delay in delivery date of 

project due to extended 

contract time to allow for 

covid restrictions.

On track

Completed Units from September 2012 - 31 December 2020

Total  

New property purchases started 

after Covid restrictions eased

Projects in progress and description

council purchase

Lilac Close

Funding to Paradigm

Procurement of construction 

partner in progress

Phase 3 site

Funding to Hightown

On track 

Lime Tree Court

Funding to WGCHA

Procurement of construction 

partner in progress

Phase 3 site

Better use of existing site for Temporary 

accommodation

Programme and delivery targets

Purchase of 2,3 & 4 bed homes for the 

council

Planning received and waiting for a 

start on site which has been 

delayed due to Covid

Northdown Road

Little Mead

On trackRevised pre-application meeting 

required due to design changes.

Planning approval achieved

Conversion of unused space at Inspira 

House block

Planning application submitted; 

contractor secured.

Funding to Home Group Funding Agreement complete. 

S106 Agreement with Legal

Revised pre-application meeting 

required due to design changes.

On track

On track

Phase 3 site

Phase 3 site

Existing flats with subsidance issues Planning application in preparation

Former sheltered housing scheme to 

provide a modern temporary 

accommodation block.

 Buildings currently being used as 

temporary accommodation. 

Planning application submitted.

Phase 3 site

Further work required

Council owned site  - has potential to 

redevelop and deliver more than 30 

additional homes

Initial feasibility underway

On track

Further work required

Further work required

Further work requiredDirect council development on 

HRA/general fund land

Delivers new garages as well as 

new flats

On track

On track

Block is part office conversion and 

part new build

Purchase units from private developer 

(proposed to sell to Now Housing 

Limited)

GF garage site and HRA site Procurement underway with a 

view to off site manufacture

Council owned site, has potential for 

redevelopment and to deliver more than 

twenty additional homes

Initial feasibility underway

Initial feasibility underway

Existing Home Group accommodation Initial feasibility underway

22/02/21Classification: Unrestricted

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Andy Luck 
Executive Member: Cllr Nick Pace 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL 2ND MARCH 2021 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 

DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT FUNDING AND USE OF BETTER CARE FUND 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 From 1 April 2015 there was a significant change in the way that national 
government funding for provision of home adaptations grants for disabled people 
(Disabled Facilities Grants) was paid to the Council. Instead of national 
government making a direct payment to each local housing authority to help 
them to meet the cost of providing Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG), this 
allocation was paid through Better Care Funds (BCF). 

1.2 The Better Care Fund (originally called the Integration Transformation Fund), 
was announced in 2013 with the stated intention of bringing about integration of 
health and social care. It was described as a ‘single pooled budget for health & 
social care services to work more closely together in local areas based on a plan 
agreed between the NHS & local authorities’. 

1.3 The Council Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) funding has been included in the 
Better Care Fund (BCF) and is received from Hertfordshire County Council 
(HCC). This means that the provision of adaptations in the Private Sector are 
facilitated and managed by us. 

1.4 DFGs are demand led and it can be difficult to predict the demand for this fund, 
however because the demand has been lower than the monies received, there 
will be a predicted sum of at least £1.37m which has accumulated since the 
introduction of the BCF, due to our underspend locally. 

1.5 The money is ring fenced for the purpose of providing adaptations or other 
enablement which improves independence in the home. It is legitimate to use the 
fund to be directed to appropriate capital or revenue projects, where the object is 
to improve health outcomes and maintain independence, as long as the provision 
of mandatory DFGs is not compromised. However, this can only be utilised in the 
Private Sector, including Housing Associations, and therefore use in Council 
owned property is specifically excluded. The government encourages innovative 
use of the fund, subject to agreement by the County Council Social Care lead to 
any proposal(s). 

1.6 This report seeks the committee’s views to recommend approval by Cabinet to 
use some of the available budget to support a specific project, a pilot joint 
initiative with Adult Social Care, to employ a ‘Housing Options Navigator’ for a 
period of two years, who will be employed to provide bespoke advice and support 
to older and vulnerable residents who are considering their future housing 
options, which will enable them to live independently and well for longer. 

1.7 We have been in discussion with the HCC via the Strategic Supported 
Accommodation Board about this proposal and other possible initiatives that 
could be progressed through use of this fund. Ideas that we are considering at 
this stage is funding for an internal Occupational Health resource to expedite 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



- 2 - 

DFG cases and other projects that support the improvement of care and 
wellbeing within the home and tackling isolation. There is also the opportunity to 
open discussions with Housing Associations in order to consider whether there 
are any suitable capital projects that would be an appropriate use of this funding.  

1.8 The government regulations, Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) (England 
and Wales) Order 2002, allows the Council to develop its own policy on how it 
administers the mandatory DFG and to widen the scope of assistance in the form 
of discretionary funding for items that fall outside mandatory DFG. Our existing 
Housing Assistance Policy was written in 2008 and there is now an opportunity to 
update and consider additional items that fall within the Better Care Fund 
objectives. A draft report outlining the proposed new policy will be brought to 
members for consideration before going out to Public consultation 

1.9 The use of BCF funding of the specific project proposed in this report will leave 
ample funds to meet the demand for the mandatory DFG’s and other 
discretionary funding of aids and adaptations. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Members recommend that Cabinet agrees to this council entering into a pilot joint 
initiative with Hertfordshire County Council for the provision of a dedicated 
specialist support to advise and support older and disabled people about their 
housing options.    

2.2 Members note the contents of this report and that other suitable uses of the fund 
are also being investigated.        

3 Explanation 

3.1 The Better Care Fund (BCF) is a programme spanning both the NHS and local 
government which seeks to join-up health and care services, so that people can 
manage their own health and wellbeing, and live independently in their 
communities for as long as possible  

3.2 Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) is for the provision of adaptations to disabled 
people’s homes to help them to live independently in their own homes for longer.  
It is a statutory function of district/borough councils.  DFG has been included in 
the Better Care Fund so that the provision of adaptations can be incorporated 
into the strategic consideration and planning of investment to improve outcomes 
for service users 

3.3 DFG is paid to upper tier authorities (in our case Hertfordshire County Council – 
HCC), as part of the BCF fund.  However, the statutory duty remains on local 
housing authorities to provide adaptations to those disabled people who qualify 
for it.  Therefore, HCC allocate this funding to the ten district housing authorities 
from the pooled budget to enable district councils to continue to meet their 
statutory duties. Local authorities are encouraged to invest some of this funding 
in broader strategic capital projects – although this is a decision to be reached 
locally 

3.4 The council funds DFGs in the private sector from this budget, however any 
adaptations to the council’s own housing stock, is currently paid for via the 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA). 

3.5 The total grant paid via the Better Care Fund is set out in the Financial 
Implications section of this report, alongside the amount that the council has paid 
toward facilitating DFGs, they are demand led and it can be difficult to predict the 

Page 16



- 3 - 

demand for this fund. The Grants are also means tested and therefore not all 
people who require adaptations in the Private Sector qualify for financial 
assistance. 

3.6 Each year the amount received from government has been in excess of the 
expenditure required to meet the statutory duties to provide DFGs and there will 
be a predicted sum of £1.37 m underspend in the Council allocated budget at the 
end of this financial year which has accumulated since the introduction of the 
BCF, due to our underspend locally.   

3.7 The pilot joint initiative with HCC Adult Social Care will be to employ a ‘Housing 
Options Navigator’ to specialise in providing advice and support to older and 
disabled people about their housing options.  This project will be across all 
tenures, including owner occupiers and private renters. The postholder would 
build knowledge and partnerships with relevant agencies to maximise the use of 
local housing options, as well as developing an understanding and delivering the 
support required to help people move to more suitable housing. A job description 
and person specification will need to be drawn up and evaluated.  

3.8 The specific projects and other considerations set out in this report are in line 
with the vision, aims and objectives of the council’s Older Person’s Housing 
Strategy (2017 – 2022).  Our vision is that ‘Older people in Welwyn Hatfield have 
a range of affordable, good quality housing options, advice and support services 
to choose from, that will promote independence, health and well-being and 
contributes to improving the overall quality of life’. 

3.9 A further aim is to improve the information and advice available to help older 
people make informed choices about their housing options, when to move and 
how to facilitate a move. 

3.10 On that basis, it is recommended that the council proceed with this specific 
project using Better Care Fund grant surplus balances. The employment of a 
‘Housing Options Navigator’ to specialise in providing advice and support to older 
and disabled people about their housing options, including owner occupiers will 
build knowledge and partnerships with relevant agencies to maximise the use of 
local housing options.  

3.11 Any other use of the fund will be used to improve the housing stock, in terms of 
improving accessibility and modernisation, which will then be suitable for 
residents with disabilities now and in the longer term and meet the wider aims of 
the Better Care Fund. 

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s)  

4.1 Under the Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996, subject to 
certain eligibility criteria being met, the council has a statutory duty to provide 
Disabled Facilities Grants.  

4.2 Since 18 July 2002 local authorities also have a general power to give 
discretionary assistance under The Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) 
(England and Wales) Order 2002 (“the Order”). The Order gives local housing 
authorities in England and Wales more flexibility to improve living conditions in 
their area and address housing issues; paragraph 3 states that the new power 
enables an authority to provide assistance to any person for—  

Page 17



- 4 - 

a) The acquisition of living accommodation, where the authority wishes to 
purchase a person’s home or as an alternative to adapting, improving or 
repairing it. 

b) The adaptation or improvement of living accommodation (including by 
alteration, conversion, or enlargement, and by the installation of things or 
injection of substances). 

c) The repair of living accommodation. 

d) The demolition of buildings comprising or including living accommodation. 

e) The construction of replacement living accommodation to replace living 
accommodation that has been demolished 

In addition to the above, assistance may be provided in any form (paragraph 3 
(3) of the Order). 

4.3 The Integration and Better Care Fund planning requirements for 2017-2019 and 
the DFG determination letter from the DCLG 2017/18 DFG can be used for wider 
social care capital projects on the basis that the statutory requirement to provide 
DFG’s can be met. 

4.4 Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 confers a general power of competence on 
local authorities to do anything that individuals may do. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The amount of money received from the fund has been higher than the capital 
funding previously provided by central government to support DFGs and this 
coupled with a reduction in demand has meant that a surplus of this fund has 
built up.  

5.2 In 2019/20 we received a DFG grant allocation of £765,094 and spent a total of 
£171,000, in year. As at March 2020 we had £1,691,993 of unspent DFG grant. 

5.3  For 20/21 we received our DFG determination grant of £765,094 plus an 
additional determination of £103,023 making a total of £868,117 and our total 
DFG grant £2,560,110 of which £188,980 has been spent so far in 2020/21. 

5.4 The budgeted spend for 2020/21 was £1,188,000.  Therefore even if the 20/21 
budget is fully spent we would be left with a balance of DFG grant of £1,372,110 
as at March 2021. 

5.5 DFG/Better care funds received: 

 

5.6 DFG Budgeted spend: 

 

5.7 The projected sum of £1.37m will be set aside to be made available to support 
DFGs or other projects that meet the aims of the Better Care Fund. 

B/fwd £ Received £ Spent £ C/fwd £

2018/19 597,742 796,157 296,000 1,097,899

2019/20 1,097,899 765,094 171,000 1,691,993

2020/21 1,691,993 868,117 188,980 2,371,130

Budget B/fwd £ Budget £ Spent £ Budget C/fwd £

2018/19 0 471,000 296,000 175,000

2019/20 175,000 592,000 171,000 596,000

2020/21 596,000 592,000 188,980 999,020

Page 18



- 5 - 

5.8 The DFG determination letter from the DCLG 2017/18 confirms that DFG can be 
used for wider social care capital projects on the basis that the statutory 
requirement to provide DFG’s can be met. It is recommended that written 
confirmation is obtained from Herts County Council on their satisfaction on the 
proposed use of the grant they are providing to the council.  

5.9 The total amount to meet all the Housing Navigator cost will be in the region of 
£70k which leaves around £1.3m plus any underspend from this year’s budget,  
which will be held to ensure that there are sufficient funds available to meet the 
anticipated DFG demand and to be used for future identified projects. The 
Private Sector Housing Team will be launching an awareness Campaign to 
publicise Disabled Facilities Grants and other discretionary assistance which may 
lead to increased demand.  

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

6.2 There must be sufficient funds to cover the demand for DFGs in the Private 
Sector. This report recommends that we use some of the underspent budget that 
has been accrued over the last three years. The residue and the current budget 
(19/20) is considered to be more than sufficient to meet the demand for DFGs 
even if there is an increase in demand.  This is based on the trend in demand 
over the last three years with a tolerance for increased demand.  Likelihood Very 
Low; Impact High.  Risk Score Low 

6.3 If we do not utilise the money this could lead to reputational risk that the council 
is perceived to not making best use of its resources; approval of the 
recommendations in this report will help mitigate this risk.  Likelihood Low; 
Impact Medium.  Risk Score Low 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising from this report 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 Any procurement relating from these recommendations will be undertaken in 
accordance with the councils Contract Procedure Rules 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 Any projects or changes to policy will refer to, and be in accordance with the 
corporate climate change and Fuel Poverty Strategies  

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There is a Human Resources implication. There will need to be the formulation of 
a Job Role and Role Profile.  The post will be employed by Welwyn Hatfield 
Council, but Hertfordshire County Council will be involved in the development of 
the role profile and be part of the recruitment process 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 The recommendations in this report will have a significant impact on the health 
and wellbeing of both council tenants and residents of the borough who are 
considered vulnerable.  

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

Page 19



- 6 - 

12.1 It is important to communicate and engage in a sensitive way with residents who 
will be affected by construction works.  There will be a communication plan linked 
to the modernisation programme in the block.  We will also communicate 
proactively about the completed projects and the positive impact that this work 
will have on to residents’ lives.  

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priorities  
Our Housing, and specifically to the Improving housing quality in the borough 
and is linked to a statutory requirement under Housing Grants, Construction and 
Regeneration Act 1996. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1  The Equality Impact Assessment has identified that there is the potential for 
positive impacts on older people and people with disabilities.  This is because the 
proposed projects will lead to improving the accessibility and standard of 
properties and the housing options of vulnerable residents. 

 
 
 
 
Name of author Andy Luck X2571 
Title Private Sector Housing Manager 
Date 10th February 2021 
 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

Welwyn Hatfield Council Older Person’s Housing Strategy 

 

Page 20



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Paul Horsley 
Executive Member: Nick Pace 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL REPORT – 2 MARCH 2021 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR (HOUSING & COMMUNITY)  

AIDS AND ADAPTATIONS POLICY  

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report presents the new Aids and Adaptations Policy (Appendix A). The aim 
of the Policy is to set out the scope and criteria that will be applied when 
assessing aids and adaptations requests for Council housing. 

1.2 The Aids and Adaptation Policy sets out the Council’s approach to comply with 
 the relevant legal and statutory requirements in relation to the provision of 
disabled  adaptations, supports the needs of disabled tenants in providing 
adaptations,  subject to the provision of available funding. 

1.3  The Policy also promotes the delivery of high-quality disabled adaptations 
service  where there are clear channels of communication and established joint 
working  practices with partners. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 For CHP to approve the Aids and Adaptations Policy (Appendix A). 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (the council) is committed to providing a high-
quality aids and adaptations service that enables disabled council tenants to live 
safely and more independently within our homes. 

3.2 The council provides funding each year for the provision of aids and adaptations 
to enable tenants to remain in their home for as long as it is safe and reasonable 
to do so. For council tenants this comes from the property services capital 
budget. The Disabled Facilities Grant (government funded) is administered by a 
different service within the council (private sector housing) in line with the 
councils Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy.  

3.3 The council will take all reasonable measures to provide a fair and accessible 
aids and adaptations service that makes best use of existing adapted properties 
and works closely with other external agencies. 

3.4 The Aids and Adaptations Policy specifically refers to aids and adaptations 
carried out to disabled council tenants living in properties owned by the council.  

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The Equalities Act 2010 prohibits discrimination against people with the protected 
 characteristics that are specified in section 4 of the act. Disability is one of the 
 specified protected characteristics.  

Page 21

Agenda Item 10



- 2 - 

4.2 The Council will make a positive difference to our communities and to the 
 people we employ, provide services to, and do business with, and aims to 
 provide services which meet the needs of customers, employees and other 
 people and groups, including people with protected characteristics, as defined 
 by the Equality Act 2010. 

4.3 The Council will ensure that no person or group of persons will be treated less 
 favourably than another person or group of persons and will carry out our duty 
 with positive regard for the core strands of equality. 

4.4 The Council will also ensure that all services and actions are delivered within 
 the context of current Human Rights legislation. Staff and others with whom 
 we work, will adhere to the central principles of the Human Rights Act (1998). 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The council provides an annual revenue and capital budget for major and minor 
aids and adaptations identified within the annual Business Plan, which will be 
used as efficiently as possible to provide a fair and accessible service to tenants. 
The Aids & Adaptations Policy does not alter this approach. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The council is committed to providing services that enable disabled council 
tenants to live safely and independently within our homes. By not providing a 
high quality aids and adaptations service there is a risk of reputational damage of 
the council not complying with this commitment and its duties as a local authority.  

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security or terrorism implications with the recommendations in this 
report.  

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 The contract for carrying out aids and adaptations will be procure / re-procured in 
accordance with relevant procurement legislation / standing orders.  

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 The proposals in this report will not impact on greenhouse gas emissions or have 
any other negative impacts in respect of the environment. 

10 Health and Wellbeing Implications 

10.1 The provision of an aids and adaptations service will have a positive impact on 
the health and wellbeing of many of our tenants each year and improve their 
quality of life through the range of adaptations carried out.   

11 Communication and Engagement  

11.1 The provision of an aids and adaptations service supports the Allocations team 
who advertise which properties have an adaptation so that households who 
require a property with an adaptation to suit their needs can bid on those 
properties and those applicants will be prioritised for that property.   

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

Page 22



- 3 - 

12.1 The Aids & Adaptations Policy supports the council’s commitment to providing 
high quality services that enable independent living and is in line with our duties 
as a local authority.  

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) completed on 17 December 2020 
found no adverse impact and a positive impact on people with disabilities, but the 
outcome of the formal assessment will be finalised at the next Equalities Steering 
Group meeting.  

 
 
Name of author Paul Horsley 
Title Asset Manager 
Date 10 February 2021 
 
 
 
Appendix A: Aids and Adaptations Policy 2021-24. 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Classification: Unrestricted 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Aids and Adaptations Policy 

 
 
 
 
 

Effective Date: 
 TBC 

 
 
 
 

Page 25



P a g e  | 2 

 

 

Document Control Document Version 
 

Version  Purpose  Author/compiler  Date  

1.0  1st Draft version  
 

Tina Warren October 2019 

2.0 2nd Draft version Aysel Arif December 2020 
 

3.0 3rd Draft version Paul Horsley January 2021 
 

    
 

    
 

    
 

   
 

 

   
 

 

   
 

 

   
 

 

   
 

 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

Future Revision Date 
 

Date  Reason  

March 2024  3 year review  
 

  
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 26



P a g e  | 3 

 

 

Table of Contents Page                                     Page 
 

1. Introduction……………………………………………………………………………… 4 
2. Key Objectives………………………………………………………………………….. 4 
3. Policy Statement……………………………………………………………………….. 4 
4. Definitions………………………………………………………………………………. 5 
5. Eligibility………………………………………………………………………………… 5 
6. Minor Adaptations……………………………………………………………………… 6 
7. Major Adaptations……………………………………………………………………… 6 
8. Complex Adaptations………………………………………………………………….. 9 
9. Moving to a More Suitable Property…………………………………....................... 10 
10. Legal Compliance……………………………………………………………………… 10 
11. Financial Considerations……………………………………………………………… 11 
12. Use of Adapted Property……………………………………………………………… 11 
13. Letting Adapted Property……………………………………………………………… 12 
14. Prioritising and Timescales for Adaptations………………………………………… 12 
15. Equality and Diversity…………………………………………………………………. 12 
16. Implementation………………………………………………………………………… 13 
17. Performance…………………………………………………………………………… 13 
18. Appeals and Complaints……………………………………………………………… 13 
19. Responsibility………………………………………………………………………….. 13 
20. Impact Assessment…………………………………………………………………… 14 
21. Review………………………………………………………………………………….. 14 
22. Getting in touch with us……………………………………………………………….. 14 
23. Data Protection………………………………………………………………………… 14 
 

 
  

Page 27



P a g e  | 4 

 

 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (the council) is committed to providing a 
high quality aids and adaptations service that enables disabled council 
tenants to live safely and more independently within our homes. 

 
1.2 The council will take all reasonable measures to provide a fair and 

accessible aids and adaptations service that makes best use of existing 
adapted properties and works closely with other external agencies. 

 
1.3 The Aids and Adaptations Policy applies to disabled council tenants and/or 

their immediate family members living in properties owned by the council.  
 
2. Key Objectives 
 
      2.1     The key objectives of this Aids and Adaptations Policy are: 

 

 To set out the scope of the service in providing aids and adaptations and 
the criteria by which the council will assess all requests for aids and 
adaptation work. 

 To support the needs of disabled tenants in providing adaptations where 
reasonably practical to do so and subject to the provision of available 
funding. 

 To have regard to the council’s duty to manage its housing stock 
effectively and to make best use of its stock, through the council’s 
Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy, Asset 
Management Strategy and Housing Delivery Strategy 2019-2025. 

 To optimise the use of resources for aids and adaptations, having regard 
for value for money at all times. 

 To comply with legal and statutory requirements in relation to the 
provision of disabled adaptations. 

 To deliver a high quality aids and adaptations service where there are 
clear channels of communication and established joint working practices 
with partners. 

 
3. Policy Statement  

 
3.1 The council is committed to providing an equitable, efficient and 

accessible aids and adaptations service to support the needs of disabled 
council tenants within the constraints of the resources available.  

 
3.2 All referrals for aids and adaptations will be considered individually having 

regard to the criteria set out in this policy and the circumstances of the 
individual requiring the adaptations.  

 

Page 28



P a g e  | 5 

 

 

3.3 As part of the assessment process, other options may be considered, 
including the offer of a move to a more suitable property, where this is 
appropriate. 

 
3.4 For major and complex aids and adaptations to family homes we will 

encourage and assist in a move to more suitable accommodation if this is 
appropriate.  

 
3.5 When a property with major adaptations becomes vacant, we will seek to 

find a housing applicant or existing tenant who needs the adaptations we 
have carried out to the property. 

 
3.6 We will make use of our aids and adaptations resources to provide 

proactive and planned generic adaptations to properties deemed suitable 
for such works.  

 
3.7     The Policy should be read in conjunction with: 

 

 WHBC Responsive Repairs Policy 

 WHBC Complaints Policy 

 WHBC Equality and Diversity Policy 
 
4. Definitions 

 
4.1 An adaptation is an alteration to an aspect of a dwelling to assist the 

disabled person to live as independently as possible in their home.  
 

4.2 A disabled person is someone who is defined as having a physical or 
mental impairment that has a substantial and long-term negative effect on 
their ability to do normal daily activities (Equality Act 2010). 
 

5.0  Eligibility 
 

5.1 A person must be a Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council tenant and they, 
their partner or a member of their immediate family who is permanently 
resident in the household and has an impairment that is likely to last for at 
least 12 months or for the remainder of the person’s life, that substantially 
affects their ability to carry out normal day to day activities or access 
facilities in or around their home.   

 
5.2  If a person does not live in a Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council owned 

property and are not a council tenant, their initial enquiry should be directed 
to the Council’s Private Sector Housing Team who facilitate all adaptation 
referrals for owner occupiers, housing association and private landlord 
tenants.  

 

Page 29



P a g e  | 6 

 

 

6. Minor Adaptations  
 
 6.1 The council will in most cases follow the guidance ‘Adaptations without delay 

 – A practical guide and technical specifications for housing associations’ 
2019  produced by the College of Occupational Therapists. 

  
 6.2 Tenants can request (self-refer) minor adaptations by contacting the 

council’s  Housing Maintenance Team on 01707 357 000. Any resident unsure 
of the  extent of the required adaptation will be asked to contact their Occupational 
 Therapist in the first instance. 

 
 6.3 Minor adaptations (typically under £500) are easily installed and do not affect 

 the future use of the property e.g. lever taps, grab rails, half step and mop 
stick  handrails. 

 
 6.4 Minor adaptation will be raised as a routine repair job (i.e. up to 25 working 

 Days) as long as they do not exceed £500 in total value in any one  property.  
 
 6.5 The likely timeframe for completing minor adaptations may be less 

depending  on critical need or if there are immediate risks to health and safety to 
the  occupants of the property. 

 
 6.6 All minor adaptations requests that cost between £500 and £1,000 will be 

 assessed by the council’s Adaptations Team, within 10 working days, to 
 assess whether a major adaptation would be more suitable.  

 
 6.7 The council reserves the right to seek an Occupational Therapist’s report on 

 aids and adaptations requests below £1,000 in value on a discretionary basis, 
 to ensure the proposed works meet the customer’s individual needs in the 
 most effective way. 

 
 6.8 If an assessment is required, once agreed, the council aims to ensure all 

 minor adaptations are completed  within 25 working days from the date they 
 are approved. 

 
 6.9 Minor adaptations do not include non-fixed equipment to assist with a 

disability  or mobility problem that are normally supplied by Hertfordshire County 
Council  Equipment Services. 

 
7. Major Adaptations   
 
 7.1 Major adaptations (typically over £1,000) are adaptations that meet needs 

 identified through an Occupational Therapist referral e.g. stair lift, over bath 
 shower, level access shower, electric opening doors, ramps and hoists. 

 

Page 30



P a g e  | 7 

 

 

 7.2 Approvals for major adaptations will only be made on receipt of an 
 Occupational Therapist’s assessment and clear recommendation that the 
 work is necessary to sustain independent living, addressing basic needs only 
 (with critical needs assessments receiving the greatest priority). 

 
 7.3 When evaluating a request for an adaptation, the council will consider 

 individual, technical and other relevant factors to enable a balanced decision 
 to be taken to ensure best use is made of the available financial resources.  

  
 7.4 Wherever possible and suitable for a customer’s circumstances, the council 

 will endeavour to facilitate approved requests for major adaptations through 
 allocations or management moves to an alternative suitable property that 
meet  required needs. This will include consideration of the suitability of the 
property,  where factors such as floor level and under occupation of the property 
will be  considered.  For example, if a single household requires an 
adaptation, but is  occupying a larger family home, a transfer to a more suitable 
property is likely  to be more appropriate. 

 
 7.5 The council will only consider approving major adaptations in non-adapted 

 properties when moving or allocating to an alternative property which is not 
 appropriate or unlikely to meet critical needs (as identified by 
 Occupational Therapist reports) within reasonable timescales. 

 
 7.6 The council will consider the following criteria when prioritising permissions 

 and providing funding for major adaptations works: 
 

 There is a completed independent Occupational Therapist referral with all 
relevant information to make a full assessment. 

 The work requested is to assist in meeting a long-term medical condition that 
is likely to continue for the near future. 

 The Occupational Therapists eligibility criteria to decide if they have priority 
needs (with ‘critical needs’ receiving priority over those with ‘substantial’ 
needs’). 

 Where there is more than one applicant with the same Occupational 
Therapist recommendation, priority will be given on date order (i.e. those that 
have been waiting longest). 

 Additional priority may be given where the requirement for adaptation is 
causing a current health and safety or fire risk. 

 
 7.7 The council reserves the right to refuse the request for a major adaptation on 

 the following grounds: 
 

 Where the adaptation is requested in a property that is due for demolition or 
major refurbishment within two years. 

Page 31



P a g e  | 8 

 

 

 The property is unsuitable for the resident e.g. too large or too small for their 
household. In the case of under occupation, the council may on a 
discretionary basis waive this condition where no other suitable housing is 
available. 

 The property is unsuitable for adaptation. 

 Where the request is for the communal parts of buildings.  

 The adaptation is considered unreasonable and unsuitable for the tenants 
needs, for example installing a level access shower to a flat above ground 
level where there is no lift to access the flat. 

 The request is to address specialist needs other than basic needs (Example 
of specialist needs: self-washing or changing facilities). 

 The request affects other areas of health and safety i.e. fire safety. 

 The adaptation requested is unlikely to meet the needs of a progressive 
condition or on-going health needs. 

 A suitable, alternative or already adapted property is offered and refused 
(depending on individual circumstances and subject to review by the 
Exceptional Circumstances Panel as outlined in 8.5, below). 

 Tenants are in persistent rent arrears, is subject to a current anti-social 
behaviour order or injunction action against them. The council may on a 
discretionary basis waive this condition in cases of critical need or where 
there are immediate risks to health and safety to the occupants of the 
property. 

 If the tenant is in the final year of their flexible tenancy we will consult with 
the Neighbourhood Officer about the likelihood of it being renewed before we 
decide whether or not to make any major/permanent adaptations to the 
property. If it has been decided the tenancy will not be renewed no adaptions 
will be considered.  

 If the tenant has submitted an application under the right-to-buy (RTB) 
scheme. Tenant will be signposted to the Disabled Facilities Grant. The 
Referral will be reassessed if the RTB is withdrawn. 

 Where a tenant has transferred from another property within the last 12 
months, which previously had the adaptations that are now being requested 
again; unless that property was confirmed to be no longer suitable for their 
needs by a health professional or council officer or if the tenant is downsizing 
to a smaller property. 

 Where the building structure is considered integrally unsuitable for technical 
and practical reasons, for example widening doorways in prefab buildings, 
wet floor showers in beam and block floors etc. 

 Where the tenants needs may be met by a more reasonable solution. 
Particularly where the OT has recommended an extension or major works 
the tenants needs will be assessed and consideration given to applying 
alternative solutions, for example utilising a ground floor dining room as a 
bedroom, instead of building an extension, a smaller extension or rehousing. 

 

Page 32



P a g e  | 9 

 

 

 7.8 The council aims to ensure all major adaptations are completed within 6 
 months from the date they are requested. Adaptations where a move to a 
more  suitable property has been identified are deemed ‘complex’.  

 
 7.9 The council may consider non-permanent adaptations if it is expected to take 

 over 6 months to find a suitable alternative property. 
 
 7.10 The council will inspect all major adaptations on completion to ensure that 

the  work has been undertaken professionally and to check that the resident is 
 satisfied with the work. 

 
8. Complex Adaptations 
 
 8.1 Complex adaptations require work that is more extensive e.g. major 

 remodelling, widening of doors, off road parking and extensions, and are 
often  designed for the specific need of the individual. These works are of high cost 
 and affect the future use of the property. 

 
 8.2 Upon receipt of the Occupational Therapists report, a feasibility assessment 

 will be carried out in consultation with the Occupational Therapist, along with 
 a member of the council’s Adaptations Team, Neighbourhood and 
 Enforcement Team  and Housing Allocations Team.  

 
 8.3 The feasibility assessment will seek to establish: 
 

 If there is a possibility for the tenant to be moved to more suitable 
accommodation. 

 The implications of the adaptation work when the property becomes 
available to re-let, in particular the impact on future allocations and under 
occupancy issues. 

 If the adaptation works are suitable for the disabled tenant. 

 The feasibility of the adaptation in relation to the layout and structure of the 
property. 

 The proposed works meet all planning, estate management and building 
regulation requirements. 

 Whether the estimated cost of the adaptation work is likely to exceed the 
council’s maximum budget provision. 

 
 8.4 Where it has been identified that a move to a more suitable property is both 

 reasonable and practicable, the council reserves the right to refuse approval 
 for the adaptations requested for the original home.  

  
 8.5  In situations where a suitable alternative or already adapted property is 

 offered and refused, approval of the complex adaptation will be subject to 
 review by the Exceptional Circumstances Panel attended by senior council 
 representatives.  

Page 33



P a g e  | 10 

 

 

  
 8.6 The council may seek advice from an independent Occupational Therapist to 

 assist with requests for complex (and sometimes major) adaptations. This 
 individual will be registered with a professional body e.g. the Health and Care 
 Professions Council (HCPC), or similar alternative. 

 
 8.7 We aim to ensure all complex adaptations are approved within 12 months 

from  the date they are requested. Due the detailed nature of these requests, 
 timescales to complete complex adaptations will be discussed and agreed at 
 the time they are made.   

 
9. Moving to a More Suitable Property 

 
 9.1 For those disabled tenants downsizing, we may be able to offer help to 

 people who need financial assistance / help and/or support with the moving 
 process. Each case will be looked at individually and the 
 assistance/support will be tailored to individual needs. 

 
 9.2 Where circumstances allow we may also offer: 
  

 Staff time to help tenants through the process with issues such as arranging 
removals, reconnection of gas and electric and other practical issues.  

 Extra support via our tenancy support service for some tenants who may 
need extra support. 

 
10. Legal Compliance 
 
 10.1 The Council will make a positive difference to our communities and to the 

 people we employ, provide services to and do business with and aims to 
 provide services which meet the needs of customers, employees and other 
 people and groups, including people with protected characteristics, as 
defined  by the Equality Act 2010. 

 
 10.2 The council will comply with the relevant legislation in regard to the provision 

 of aids and adaptations services. The main provisions of the legislation are 
set  out below: 

 

 Providing auxiliary aids and services. 

 Changing provisions, criteria or practices (e.g. allowing a disabled person 
who uses an assistance dog to take a property that might otherwise have 
stipulated ‘no dogs’). 

 
 10.3 Despite having no legal requirement under the Equalities Act 2010 to alter 

any  physical features of our properties, the council is committed to promoting 
 choice for independent living for its existing residents and applicants who 
have  a disability or require an aid or adaptation.  

Page 34



P a g e  | 11 

 

 

 
 10.4 The council will ensure that no person nor group of persons will be treated 

less  favourably than another person or group of persons and will carry out our 
duty  with positive regard for the following core strands of equality. 

 
 10.5 The council will also ensure that all services and actions are delivered within 

 the context of current Human Rights legislation. Staff and others with whom 
 we work, will adhere to the central principles of the Human Rights Act (1998). 

 
11. Financial Considerations 
 
 11.1 The council will set an annual budget identified within the annual Business 

 Plan, which will be used as efficiently as possible to provide a fair and 
 accessible service to all existing tenants, whilst demonstrating value for 
 money.  

 
 11.2  In the event that the demand for assistance exceeds the annual budget 

 allocation, a waiting list will be operated subject to priority need which can be 
 rolled forward into the next financial year.  

  
 11.4 The council may request that multiple adaptation requests to a single 

property  are separated into highest need to manage funding by allocating 
priority to  certain adaptations.  

 
 11.5 For all adaptations, the council’s Contract Procedure Rules must be followed 

 to ensure that stewardship and probity are maintained within the Council and 
 that Approved Officers obtain Best Value services and Value for Money from 
 purchasing arrangements.  

 
 11.6    Occupational Therapists requesting adaptations for private tenants should be 

 directed to the Council’s Private Sector Housing Team who facilitate all 
 adaptation referrals for owner occupiers, housing association and private 
 landlord tenants. 

 
12.  Use of Adapted Property 

 
 12.1 It is expected that once major adaptations have been completed the tenant 

 continues to live in the property unless circumstances do not allow for this 
 (such as a worsening medical condition). 
 

 12.2 Where substantial works have been carried out to the property and the 
person  requiring the adaptions dies or is unable to remain at the property and 
moves  elsewhere, the remaining members of the household may be asked to 
move  to alternative accommodation. 

 

Page 35



P a g e  | 12 

 

 

 12.3 If a customer applies for re-housing or a mutual exchange, unless their 
 circumstances have changed they will normally be classed as adequately 
 housed and therefore will not qualify to join the housing needs register.  

 
13. Letting Adapted Properties  

 
 13.1  Where a property with major adaptations becomes vacant, we will generally 

 advertise the property through the choice based letting scheme with a 
 view to finding an applicant who needs the adaptations. 
 

 13.2 If a property has specific or extensive adaptations, a decision may be made 
 not to advertise the property but to make a direct offer to an applicant or 
 existing tenant who has a need for the adaptations.  
 

14. Prioritising and timescales for adaptations 
  

 14.1 Occupational Therapist reports are normally processed in chronological 
order.  However we  recognise that on occasions we will receive a request to fast 
 track the adaptations for exceptional reasons. Where possible and 
 appropriate we will fast track the works requested.  
 

 14.2 Minor adaptations have a target deadline of 25 working days (unless part of 
 a major adaptations request, where they may be completed at the same 
time). 

 
 14.3 Major adaptations have a target deadline of 6 months from receipt of the OT 

 Report Request, although we aim to complete 80% of major adaptations 
within  3 months. 

 
 
15. Equality and Diversity 
  
 15.1 The council will treat all customers and staff with fairness and respect. We 

 value diversity and work to promote equality and tackle unlawful 
discrimination.  

 
 15.2 We are committed to helping customers to access information about their 

 homes and services in a way that suits individual needs. 
 
 15.3 We will meet the requirements relating to equality and diversity laid down in 

 the Equality Act 2010 by working to:  
 

 eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation  

 advance equality of opportunity and  

 Foster good relations between all our residents, service users and 
staff.  

Page 36



P a g e  | 13 

 

 

 
 15.4 The council is committed to welcoming and valuing diversity, promoting 

 equality of opportunity and tackling unlawful discrimination. We will not 
 discriminate against staff, customers or others based on their sex, sexual 
 orientation, marital status, pregnancy and maternity, gender reassignment, 
 race, religion,  belief, disability or age (collectively referred to as protected 
 characteristics in the Equality Act 2010). 

 
 15.5 The council aims to provide homes and services that meet the diverse needs 

 of customers. We believe that all customers should be able to access 
housing,  support and care services with the same ease and that the quality of 
our  service is the same high standard for all. 

 
16.  Implementation 
 
 16.1 Staff have a responsibility to be aware of the Aids and Adaptations  Policy 

 and to signpost any customer queries that may arise. 
 
 16.2 Decisions related to extensive alteration (on the recommendations of 

 Occupational Therapists reports and subject to budget / resource availability) 
 must be approved by the Asset Manager and where necessary, a member of 
 the operational housing team. 

 
17. Performance 
 
 17.1 Service standards and Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) are monitored at 

 monthly contract monitoring meetings, held between the Building Surveyor 
 responsible for day-to-day operations, the contractor responsible for the 
works  and other members of the Asset Management Team.   

 
 17.2 The Head of Property Services has overall operational responsibility for the 

 aids and adaptations service. 
 
18.  Appeals and Complaints 
 
 18.1 Any person who is not satisfied with the way the council or its contractor(s) 

 has dealt with the service they have received regarding the aids and 
 adaptations service, has the right to have their case investigated via the 
 council’s complaint procedure. 

 
 18.2 Any person who has had their request for aids and adaptations refused may 

 request that the decision be reviewed by using the council’s complaints 
 procedure.  

 
19.  Responsibility  
 

Page 37



P a g e  | 14 

 

 

19.1 The Head of Property Services is responsible for this policy. This includes its 
 implementation and review, ensuring that all related procedural and guidance 
 notes are timely and accurate. Each Head of Service will be responsible for 
 ensuring that teams adhere to this policy, our customer service standards
 and for driving performance improvement where that is required. 

 
20.  Impact Assessment  
  
 20.1 An impact assessment on our Adaptations Policy has been conducted during 
  the consultation process. 
 
21.  Review  
 
 21.1  This policy will be reviewed every three years, with interim revisions to be  
  made on an exceptional basis in light of any legislative or regulatory  
  changes, or in line with best practice.  
 
22.  Getting in touch with us  
 
 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council  
 Council Offices  
 The Campus  
 Welwyn Garden City  
 Herts, AL8 6AE  
 Telephone: 01707 357 000 
 Email: Adaptations@welhat.gov.uk 
 
 Website: www.welhat.gov.uk  
 
 Our opening hours are: 8.45am to 5.15pm Monday to Thursday, 8.45am to 4.45pm 
 Friday 
 
23.  Data Protection 
  

23.1 When you make a complaint, we will log information about your complaint 
 and your name and contact details. Information will only be collected and
 stored for the purposes of dealing with your complaint and improving our 
services. Your complaint and details will be treated confidentially.  

 
All complaints are treated confidentially. Notwithstanding the freedom of 
information Act 2000.  

 
  Please refer to the council Data Protection guidelines:    
  http://www.welhat.gov.uk/Data-Protection 
 
 

Page 38

mailto:Adaptations@welhat.gov.uk
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/
http://www.welhat.gov.uk/Data-Protection


P a g e  | 15 

 

 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



 
- 1 - 

 

Part 1 
Main author: Dawn Murphy 
Executive Members: Cllr Nick Pace 
Hatfield Central 
Item 11 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 2 MARCH 21  
REPORT OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITY) 
 
RESPONSIVE REPAIRS 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update to members of the Cabinet 
Housing Panel on the responsive repairs service. 

1.2 Appendix A provides Q3 KPI performance and the responsive repairs by 
category including a comparison to last year. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Members of Cabinet Housing Panel are asked to note the content of this report. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The Housing Maintenance Team within Property Services (Housing) is operating 
in a “business as usual” capacity. We continue to review this in line with 
Government announcements.  Access to homes continue to be tenant led.  

3.2 The Repairs Service Centre has seen a high number of calls in Q3, with October 
receiving 6,390; November 5,563 and December 5,087. At the time of writing the 
report January 2021 showed incoming calls reduced to 4,943. 

3.3 In addition to the extra call volume, the teams are still working through the 
backlog created during this year’s lockdowns. There were 500 non-urgent repairs 
outstanding, but this has now been reduced down to around 130. 

3.4 During the reporting period the overall tenant satisfaction with the responsive 
repairs service KPI 9 is below the tolerance, currently reporting at 74.33% 
against a target of 92%.  This KPI is based on a score of 7 or below and asks the 
question, “How would you rate your overall experience of the service for this 
repair, from when you reported it to when the work was completed?” 

3.5 The team analyses the reasons why customers were dissatisfied. Customers 
expressed difficulty in getting through on the telephone, both to WHBC and 
Mears, in Q3 and this will have impacted on the service the customer was 
receiving.  Appendix A shows the increase in jobs reported compared to last 
year.  

 We also took the decision to bring the contact centre staff back into the office as 
it was found that the technology for call handling works better in the office, than 
in officers’ homes, where they had been working due to the pandemic.  We have 
made new IT arrangements in the office to ensure social distancing to facilitate 
this. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 11



 

 

 

 
- 2 - 

 

3.6 We have reviewed the experience for customers when calling the 0800 number 
for reporting a repair and it has been reported that 40% of the calls managed by 
the Repair Service Centre do not relate to reporting a repair -the tenant trying to 
contact another service such as Neighbourhood Officers or other non-housing 
council services  This frustrates customers and impacts on the efficiency of the 
Repairs Service Centre, due to the wasted call handling time, whilst genuine 
repairs calls are waiting in the queue. 

3.7 To alleviate this pressure we reviewed the process to see how we could improve 
the service and increase customer satisfaction and implemented a new process 
for how these calls are managed with effect from 21 January 2021. 

3.8 When a tenant now calls the 0800 number the call is diverted to the council’s 
main IVR* (select number for service needed). This is the same IVR accessed 
through the council’s main contact number 01707 357000.  There was some 
confusion for a few days whilst this new process was implemented as the 
customer was used to getting direct through to the repairs, now they have to go 
through a few options in order to get to the right team first time.  However, the 
system has now bedded in well and the contact centre is able to operate more 
efficiently. 

3.9 Mears have also reviewed their phone numbers and also introduced options that 
make it easier for the customer to get to the right team first time. 

3.10 Customers also expressed dissatisfaction with the length of time they have to 
wait for appointments, we do have priority categories and the longest for a 
routine repair being 25 working days. Ideally Mears try to attend within this time 
period but due to the pressure on the service tenants have occasionally had to 
wait until the last working day. This has been exacerbated by the backlog of 
repairs being carried out, as explained above. 

3.11 To help improve the customer experience and improve satisfaction, we have 
introduced new technology and Mears launched this new technology (MCM Live) 
on the 18 January 2021 to help improve contact between Mears’ operatives and 
tenants. 

3.12 MCM Live is a platform that will allow tenants to track their Mears operative on a 
live map, receive an estimated time of arrival, chat with their operative and 
upload photos relating to the repair. 

3.13 In addition to providing tenants with a better experience, it is hoped the new 
technology will help the council reduce the number of ‘no access’ appointments, 
improving the overall efficiency of the service. 

3.14 It will also provide added peace-of-mind for tenants who will be able to check the 
operative’s name and photo with the ID presented on arrival. 

3.15 Feedback has been that the system is working and sending links via SMS, Mears 
are unable to see if the customer has accessed the link, at this time this is not 
reported back due to the link being an external URL, and it is something Mears 
are looking to develop. 

3.16 We have been working closely with Human Resource to utilise council furloughed 
staff in a range of support roles within Property Services (Housing) focussing on 

Page 42



 

 

 
- 3 - 

resident engagement, to help sort out a complaints backlog arising largely from 
the service disruption caused by the pandemic. 

4. Implications 

4.1 Legal Implications 

4.2 This report is for information only and there are no legal implications arising. 

5. Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 This report is for information only and there are no financial implications arising. 

6. Risk Management Implications  

6.1 This report is for information only and there are no risk management implications 
arising. 

7 Communication 

7.1 This report is for information only and there is no wider communication 
implications. 

8. Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising from this report. 

9. Procurement Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

10 Climate Change Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 

11. Human Resources Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no HR implications arising from this report. 

12. Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

12.1  There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report. 

13. Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the following Council’s Corporate Priorities 
‘‘Our Housing’ specifically to Improving Housing Need in the Borough. 

14. Equalities and Diversity 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 
Name of author: Dawn Murphy 
Title: Commercial Manager Property Services (Housing) 
Date: 11 February 2021 

Page 43



 

 

 

 
- 4 - 

 

 

Attached documents: Appendix A 

Page 44



 
- 1 - 

 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL  
REPORT OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITY) 
 
RESPONSIVE REPAIRS SERVICE  

APPENDIX A 

Key Performance Indicators 

No Title Quarter Three Tolerance 

KPI 1 % of all responsive repairs 
completed within target 
 

100% 96 - 97.99% 

KPI 2 % of responsive repair jobs 
completed on time - Emergency 
 

100% 98 - 98.99% 

KPI 3 % of responsive repair jobs 
completed on time - Urgent 
 

100% 97 - 97.99% 

KPI 4 % of responsive repair jobs 
completed on time - Routine 
 

100% 96 - 97.99% 

KPI 5 Number of Working Days to 
Complete Response Repair 
(Routine) 
 

17  16 - 17 

KPI 6 % of repairs completed under 
CIH Repairs Charter definition of 
First Visit Fix  

93.56% 78 - 79.99% 

KPI 7 Appointments made as % of 
repairs raised 
 

99.13% 83 - 84.99% 

KPI 8 Appointments kept as % of 
appointments made 
 

100% 92 - 94.99% 

KPI 9 % overall tenant satisfaction with 
the responsive repairs service 
provided by the Partnership 
 

74.33% 90 - 91.99% 

KPI 10 % of Response Repair Recalls 

 

2.24% 5.01 – 7% 

KPI 11 % of Response Repair that Pass 
Post Inspection 

 

94.11% 93 - 94.99% 

KPI 12 % void works that pass post 
inspection 

 

100% 93 - 94.99% 

KPI 13 % Voids Completed within target 
time 

 

100% 93 - 94.99% 

KPI 14 Average number of Working 
Days to Complete Void 
Properties 

 

11.59 18 - 19  

 

Page 45



- 2 - 
 

Responsive Repairs Data by Category  

2020 
Emergency 

Jobs Urgent Jobs Routine Jobs Total Jobs 
October 607 534 1013 2154 

November 697 477 1016 2190 
December 752 405 832 1989 

Total  2056 1416 2861 6333 

 

2019 
Emergency 

Jobs Urgent Jobs Routine Jobs Total Jobs 
October 634 400 1096 2130 

November 584 348 1008 1940 
December 640 346 714 1700 

Total  1858 1094 2818 5770 

 

 

 

Page 46



 

 

- 1 - 
 

Main author: Elliott Manzie 
Executive Members: Cllr Nick Pace 
Hatfield Central 
Item 12 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 2 MARCH 2021 
REPORT OF CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITY) 
 
WINTER GAS PLAN 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update to members of the Cabinet 
Housing Panel on the Winter Gas Plan. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Members of Cabinet Housing Panel are asked to note the content of this report. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The aim of the Winter Plan is to ensure that adequate processes and procedures 
are in place to provide a quality gas servicing, repair and breakdown service over 
the winter months and to provide assurance that tenants shall only experience 
minimal service disruption whilst they may be without functional gas central 
heating systems. 

3.2 The gas responsive repairs for Q3 were as follows; 

 October 2020  873 

 November 2020 714 

 December 2020 757  

 January 2021 869 

 The total was 3,213 with 99% being completed within the target of the Winter 
Plan.     

3.3 The annual gas safety checks / servicing in Q3 was successful with all planned 
services carried out.  Servicing was rescheduled between 22nd December 2020 
and 4th January 2021 in accordance with the Winter Plan to ensure we had more 
capacity over that period to focus on reactive works and 100% compliance was 
attained. 

3.4 We stayed in daily communication with our contractors (P H Jones and Aaron 
Services) to ensure any potential issue was addressed as efficiently as possible 
as set out in the Winter Plan.   

4. Implications 

4.1 Legal Implications 

4.2 This report is for information only and there are no legal implications arising. 

5. Financial Implication(s) 

Page 47

Agenda Item 12



- 2 - 
 

5.1 This report is for information only and there are no financial implications arising. 

6. Risk Management Implications  

6.1 This report is for information only and there are no risk management implications 
arising. 

7 Communication 

7.1 This report is for information only and there are no wider communication 
implications. 

8. Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no security and terrorism implications arising from this report. 

9. Procurement Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

10 Climate Change Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no climate change implications arising from this report. 

11. Human Resources Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no HR implications arising from this report. 

12. Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

12.1  There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report. 

13. Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the following Council’s Corporate Priorities 
‘‘Our Housing’ specifically to Improving Housing Need in the Borough. 

14. Equalities and Diversity 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 
Name of author: Elliott Manzie  
Title: Compliance Manager, Property Services (Housing) 
Date: 11 February 2021 
 

 

 

Page 48



Part 1 
Main author: Stuart Pearson 
Executive Members: Cllr Nick Pace, 
Cllr Duncan Bell 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 02 MARCH 2021 
REPORT OF SHAREHOLDER GROUP 
 
NOW HOUSING – PROGRESS REPORT 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report provides an update on Now Housing Limited. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Cabinet Housing Panel notes the report of the Chair of Now Housing 
Limited (shown in Appendix A), which presents an update on the company’s 
progress to date. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 In January 2019 the Cabinet of Welwyn Hatfield Council approved the creation of 
Now Housing Limited, a new wholly council-owned housing company to provide 
housing for local people whose needs cannot be easily met through the private or 
social rented sectors.   

3.2 Cabinet appointed a shareholder representative group to oversee the set-up of 
the Now Housing, on behalf of the council.  Members of the shareholder group 
consist of the Council’s Head of Paid Service, Section 151 Officer, Corporate 
Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) and Monitoring Officer. 

3.3 The business plan for Now Housing Limited was approved in October 2019 and 
as part of the shareholder monitoring arrangements, regular updates on Now 
Housing’s performance against the business plan are required to be presented to 
Cabinet Housing Panel. 

3.4 The loan agreement between Now Housing Limited and the council has been 
finalised. This forms the basis for the funding provision for the development and 
acquisition of homes through Now Housing. 

3.5 The purchase of the flat block at Chequersfield by Now Housing completed on 10 
December 2020.  The twelve flats were let immediately to local households in 
housing need and the feedback from the new tenants has been really positive. A 
breakdown of the feedback from residents is appended to the main Now Housing 
report at Appendix 1. 

3.6 Performance on rent collection is currently 100% and there has been no rent lost 
due to voids. 

3.7 As required by the council, the business plan for Now Housing Limited is subject 
to annual review. The first review has been concluded and the business plan 
update is attached as Appendix 2. 

 

Page 49

Agenda Item 13



3.8 A meeting between the Chair and Vice-Chair of Now Housing Limited and the 
Shareholder Group took place on 10 December 2020.  An update on the 
progress of Now Housing was discussed with the shareholder group. This update 
is contained within the attached report. 

 

 Implications 

4. Legal Implications 

4.1 Now Housing Limited is a legally constituted company and robust governance 
arrangements are in place, as agreed with the shareholder group and based on 
expert legal advice provided to both Now Housing and the shareholder group. 

5. Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 A loan agreement has been agreed between the council and Now Housing, with 
a loan facility established to enable Now Housing to acquire and develop 
affordable homes. 

6. Risk Management Implications 

6.1 Now Housing has developed a comprehensive risk map, covering both  
 strategic and operational risks.   

7.1 Communication 

7.1 A communications plan was developed to deliver effective p, to ensure that the 
council promotes its achievement in creating the Housing Company. The 
communications plan will be launched when the first properties have been let. 

 
8.1 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no security or terrorism implications arising from this report. 

9. Procurement Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no procurement implications arising from this report. 

10. Climate Change Implication(s) 

10.1 The are no climate change implications arising from this report. 

11. Human Resources Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no human resource implications arising from this report. 

12. Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

12.1 There are health and wellbeing implications arising from this report.  

13. Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the following Council’s Corporate Priorities 
‘‘Our Housing’ specifically to Housing Need and Affordable Homes. 

14. Equalities and Diversity 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies 

Page 50



Classification: Personal/Sensitive 

 
 

 
Name of author: Stuart Pearson 
Title: Head of Housing Operations  
Date: February 2021 
 

Attached documents: Appendix A - Now Housing Performance Update, report of 
the Chair, Now Housing Limited. 

 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

REPORT OF THE CHAIR, NOW HOUSING LIMITED 

NOW HOUSING PERFORMANCE UPDATE  

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 In January 2019 the Cabinet of Welwyn Hatfield Council approved the 
creation of a new wholly council-owned housing company to provide housing 
for local people whose needs cannot be easily met through the private or 
social rented sectors. The business plan for Now Housing Limited was 
approved in October 2019 and as part of the shareholder monitoring 
arrangements, regular updates on Now Housing’s performance against the 
business plan are required to be presented to Cabinet Housing Panel. 

1.2 The loan agreement between Now Housing Limited and the council has been 
finalised. This forms the basis for the funding provision for the development 
and acquisition of homes through Now Housing. 

1.3 The purchase of the flat block at Chequersfield by Now Housing completed on 
10 December 2020.  The twelve flats were let immediately to local households 
in housing need and the feedback from the new tenants has been really 
positive. There has been 100% rent collection on these properties to date. 

1.4 The Board of Now Housing continues to meet regularly, and all key policies 
have been signed off by the Board.  There is also a robust risk assessment in 
place and now that the first homes have come into the ownership of Now 
Housing, the Board is receiving operational performance reports, against an 
agreed set of key performance indicators. 

1.5 The first annual business plan review has been concluded.  The business 
plan has been updated to reflect the most up to date position, based on the 
costs and timing of acquisitions, future housing developments and operating 
costs.  There is growth in the number of homes to be delivered by Now 
Housing up to 2025, from 372 to 383. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 To note this performance update. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 In January 2019 Cabinet Members approved the establishment of a local 
housing company (Now Housing Limited) which is wholly owned by the 
council and limited by shares. 

3.2 The objectives of the company, are: 

a) Provide good quality, well managed homes for residents in the 
borough of Welwyn Hatfield which people can afford to live in, 

Page 53



and which complement the council’s existing and planned 
housing provision. 

b) Support the growing local demand for a mix of housing tenures 
by providing intermediate, low cost home ownership or open 
market homes and letting sub-market and market rented homes. 

c) Be a financially robust company, generating a profit to be used for 
the purpose of providing more affordable housing and delivering 
financial returns to the shareholder. 

d) Stimulate local housing regeneration and partnership working 

3.3 Progress update 

3.3.1 The loan agreement between Now Housing Limited and the council has been 
approved.  This sets out the arrangements for the provision of funding to Now 
Housing, so that it can conduct transactions.   

3.3.2 The first development was purchased by Now Housing from the council on 10 
December 2020.  The block of flats at Chequersfield comprises 12 one-
bedroom properties.  Tenants were drawn from households at the lower 
priority end of the borough’s housing needs register.  There was a great deal 
of interest and the 12 flats were let immediately after the block was acquired 
by Now Housing.  There has been a great deal of positive feedback and this is 
included as Appendix 1 to this report.  To date 100% of the rents due have 
been collected and there has no rent loss due to voids. 

3.3.3 Now Housing will explore further opportunities brought forward, subject to 
following the procedures set out in the council’s Housing Delivery Strategy.  
Cabinet Housing Panel will be updated on these new opportunities as they 
arise. 

3.3.4 As required by the council, the business plan for Now Housing Limited is 
subject to annual review.  The first review has been concluded.  The business 
plan has been updated to reflect the most up to date position in terms of 
assumptions around the costs and timing of acquisitions and potential new 
developments and operating costs.  There is marginal growth in the number of 
homes to be delivered by Now Housing, from 372 to 383.  A business plan 
update is attached as Appendix 2. 

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 There are no additional legal implications arising from this progress report. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 All Now Housing Limited transactions adhere to the provisions of the business 
plan and in accordance with the approved loan agreement.  

5.2 There are no additional financial implications arising from this progress report. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

Page 54



6.1 Now Housing Limited has in place a comprehensive, Board approved risk 
map. This has been updated considering the Covid pandemic. 

6.2 There are no additional risk implications arising from this progress report. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications associated to this report. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications associated to this report. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no climate change implications associated to this report. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising from this report. Now 
Housing Limited does not directly employ any staff. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications directly arising from this report. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 There are no communication and engagement implications arising directly 
from this report. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The objectives of Now Housing Limited directly reflect the council’s objectives: 
Our Council – Housing Need, Affordable Homes 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has not been completed because this report 
does not propose changes to existing service-related policies or the 
development of new service- related policies.  All operational policies 
developed by Now Housing are subject to Board-approved equality impact 
assessments. 

 

Name of author Simone Russell 
Title Chair, Now Housing Limited 
Date 12 February 2020 

 

Attached –   Appendix 1, Feedback comments from new tenants at Chequersfield 
  Appendix 2 – Business Plan update 2020-2026 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Now Housing Performance Report 040321 Appendix 1 
 

Now Housing – Chequersfield, feedback from new tenants, December 2020  

How you have found moving into your own home? 

 I’ve loved every minute of moving into my own flat! I feel like I can finally 
breath. I was so doubtful that I’d ever find a home for myself.  

 I found moving into my new home easier than expected. Having white goods 
and flooring already in was just such a big plus as that meant I only needed to 
move my belongings and get settled in. 

 We found the moving into our new home a good and enjoyable experience 

 I feel very lucky to have the opportunity to be a first tenant in this new build 
and appreciate all the help and support I have had. 

 We love our flat it is beautiful it is the perfect size for us and our own little bit 
of heaven! 

Did you receive good customer service from the staff at Now Housing? 

 All contact with staff at now housing has been quick, helpful and friendly. 
Couldn’t ask for better customer service.  

 My Now Housing contact was always on the other end of an email with any 
queries I had - which helped me A LOT having this be my first home and not 
knowing much myself. 

 The staff at now housing have been helpful during the process, keeping us up 
to date with all the information we needed and we felt that we could easily 
approach them with any questions we had. 

 Now Housing staff have been great help in getting back with all the questions 
me and my mum had, also has been very supportive and great at keeping us 
all update 

 We have received amazing customer service, being a nervous person and 
wanting to make sure I did everything right I rang a lot of times, Now Housing 
were always  amazing and dealt with our queries straight away which we are 
really grateful for. Even down to signing the tenancy because of my illness 
you were accommodating of my needs 

How did you find the appearance and condition of the property? 

 I’m still in shock that I get to live in such an amazing apartment, it’s been a 
dream. Everything is clean, fresh and modern. It’s beyond my expectations 

 The appearance of the property is just beautiful. The walls were painted 
perfectly fresh white and the flooring is gorgeous and really makes the 
property look very stylish. You can still smell the scent of new. 

 The property was in a very good condition when we moved. Everything was 
clean and organised 

 The layout of the flat is very nice and practical, and the balcony is such a 
great perk! 

 The property was new and fresh and we just love it!  

 The condition of the flat was perfect, could not fault it at all. It’s a very nice 
place to live 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Now Housing Performance update 040321 Appendix 2 
 

 

 

Business Plan Update – 2020-2026 

Introduction 
 
This report provides the key background changes to the original Now Housing Limited business plan 
of September 2019 for the updated version, attached as an appendix. 
 
The original plan presented for the period 2019-2025 assumed the acquisition and development of 
372 homes, rented at Local Housing Allowance (LHA) levels on assured tenancies. Peak borrowing 
was projected at £77.2million and the potential to repay all loans by year 49 of the plan. 
 
The plan has been updated to reflect the most up to date position in terms of assumptions around the 
costs and timing of acquisitions and potential developments along with latest operating costs as 
detailed below. There is marginal growth in the number of units from 372 to 383. 
 
 
Acquisition Strategy 
 
The plan has been updated in respect of the following changes from the original 346 acquisition 
planned to 368. 
 
Inspira House: This property is now forecast to be acquired in April 2023 rather than April 2021 with 
the number of units remaining the same but inflation has been applied to the purchase price to reflect 
the consequence of the delay. 
 
Chequersfield: The acquisition completed in mid-December 2020 from the previously assumed April 
2020 date. In addition, the number of units has been reduced to 12 from 20 with a revised acquisition 
price and specific loan facility arrangement at a rate of 3.25%. 
 
Open Market Acquisitions: The number of units and ratios between bed sizes and location projected 
to be acquired remains the same at 120, albeit delayed by 1 year with the programme commencing 
April 2021. We have taken this opportunity to reflect the latest market values at today’s prices and 
assumed an inflationary increase of 2% for April 2021. The table below shows the changes to 
previously modelled prices. 
 

£ Location April-2019 Inflated Dec-2020 

1 Bed Flat  Hatfield 175,000 178,500 185,000 

2 Bed Flat Hatfield 205,000 209,000 225,000 

1 Bed Flat WGC 190,000 194,000 200,000 

2 Bed Flat WGC 215,000 219,500 230,000 

 
Section 106 Sites: Previously 114 properties were modelled to be acquired from sites from units that 
are classified for market sale. The timetable for acquisitions has been amended to reflect delays in 
delivery but also changes to potential sites. A net increase of 10 units has been assumed due to the 
changes in these sites, but also uplifts to assumed acquisition prices of c£15,000 of between 5.5%-
6.0%. 
 
Discounted Market Purchases: The number of acquisitions, ratios and location projected remains the 
same at 48, again delayed by 1 year commencing April 2021. The increases to house prices when 
compared to flats does not seem as high, however, we have applied the following rates as below: 
 

Page 59



Now Housing Performance update 040321 Appendix 2 
 

 

£ Location April-2019 Inflated Dec-2020 

2 Bed House Hatfield 280,000 285,500 290,000 

3 Bed House Hatfield 300,000 306,000 310,000 

4 Bed House Hatfield 400,000 408,000 350,000 

2 Bed House WGC 280,000 285,500 300,000 

3 Bed House WGC 330,000 336,500 340,000 

4 Bed House WGC 420,000 428,500 430,000 

 
Swallowfields: This is a newly proposed site of 20 flats derived from an office conversion at an 
estimated value of £3.7million, to be acquired in June 2021. 
 
 
Development Strategy 
 
The number of assumed developed properties has reduced from 26 to 16 within this plan. 
 
Inspira House Void Land: The development of 4 flats has been delayed commencing until April 2023 
to allow for transfer of the land instead of April 2021 and following a review has been revised to 3 
flats. Build costs have been amended to reflect inflation. 
 
Homestead Court: The assumption is that this will continue to be developed providing 12 units 
although commencing in April 2022 rather than April 2020. Again, inflationary assumptions have been 
made for build costs. 
 
Inspira House (Top-Hatting): The development of adding an additional floor to this building to provide 
10 flats is now not deemed possible due to planning restrictions. 
 
Rent Levels 
 
As per the previous version of the plan LHA levels have been used as the basis for rent levels whilst 
the flex product is developed. Due to the pandemic LHA levels were revisited in April this year and 
detailed in the table below: 
 

£ 2019.20 Levels Inflated 2020.21 

Bedsit 155.50 158.61 127.32* 

1 Bed 155.50 158.61 172.60 

2 Bed 197.81 201.77 212.88 

3 Bed 244.31 249.20 276.16 

4 Bed 293.79 299.67 322.19 

 
*The bedsit rate has been revised on the basis of the median point between a 1 Bedroom property 
and one with shared facilities as categorised with the LHA allowable levels. 
 
It is also assumed that the 2020.21 rates will not have an inflationary increase applied for 2021.22 
giving a prudent position pending the outcome of any Government spending reviews. 
 
 
Operating Costs 
 
In the main, the assumptions in respect of direct operating costs remain the same as before with a 
management fee of 4% (net of VAT) charged by the Council’s landlord services. Provisions for day to 
day, cyclical repairs and future improvements remain as before. 
 
The only exception is that where Now Housing retain ownership of a whole block the management fee 
is inclusive of caretaking and cleaning costs. 
 
In terms of overhead costs a revised schedule of service level agreements has been proposed and 
modelled, resulting in a reduction of c£21,000 to those originally proposed. 
 

Page 60



Now Housing Performance update 040321 Appendix 2 
 

 

The plan provides for a proportion of charges in 2020.21 of £25,280 for service level agreements and 
£50,000 of set-up costs. These are yet to be finalised buy the Council’s financial service department. 
 
 
Financing 
 
The model remains underpinned by a revolver type loan facility which seeks to use surplus to repay 
debt whilst drawing finance as required. A specific facility has been modelled for the Chequersfield 
acquisition for £2.437million to match the annual schedule provided for interest and repayments over 
a 50-year period. 
 
The revolver facility continues to be modelled at a long-term rate of 3.5%. 
 
 
Inflation Assumptions 
 
Short and Long-term inflation assumptions remain at 2%per annum, with the exception of rent 
increases (and management fee) for April 2021 where no increase has been applied. 
 
 
Corrections to the Model 
 
Following the publication of the model and subsequent checking it was discovered that some of the 
acquisition expenditure was not being correctly accounted for within the model, therefore understating 
the borrowing requirement. This has been corrected within the update and audit checks have been 
made. 
 
 
Financial Output 
 

 
 
Given the various changes to the model in terms of uplifts to acquisition costs, delays for 
implementation, correction required to the model these have been offset by higher rent levels and 
reduced overhead costs. Peak borrowing is now £87.2million. 
 
 

Page 61



Now Housing Performance update 040321 Appendix 2 
 

 

 
The duration for potential loan repayment has been extended by c5 years, but remains within 50 
years in terms of final projected acquisitions. 
 
Summary 
 
This summarised update provides the Board with the key changes made to the model and attached is 
an abbreviated plan from that previously presented to the Council. 
 
The acquisition and development of properties will be continually subject to independent appraisal for 
meeting the required hurdles and the recent reduction in cost of borrowing for the Council will 
enhance the position in order to achieve finance for acquisitions to progress. 
 
Simon Smith 
December 2020 

Page 62



Now Housing Performance Update 040321 Appendix 2a 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

 

NOW HOUSING LIMITED BUSINESS PLAN 
 

Contents 
 

1. Introduction 
About our Business Plan 
Our Vision 
Strategic Objectives and Aims 
Housing need in Welwyn Hatfield 
Key Activities 
 

2. Delivery 
Completed Projects 
Proposed Projects 
Potential Projects 
Growth beyond the Plan 
Funding and Viability 

 
3. Operations  

Management of Properties 
Operational Support 
Acquisition Activity 
Development  
Rent Policy (Flex Product) 
 

4. Financial Strategy 
Financial Controls & Budget 
6 Year - Funding & Investment Need 
50 Year Projections 
Council Returns 
Auditing 
Risk Management & Mitigation 
 

 
Appendices 
 

a. Financial Forecasts 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

2 
 

1.        INTRODUCTION 
 
Welcome to the updated Business Plan for Now Housing Limited. 
 
1.1 About this Business Plan 
 
This Business Plan sets out our vision, objectives and the activities we intend to engage in to 
implement the objectives, along with funding arrangement, forecast budgets and the 
relationship with between Now Housing and it’s shareholder, Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council.   
 
The Business Plan covers the operating period to 2020 to 2026 in detail, and provides an 
insight to objectives, priorities and financial projections beyond that date. 
 
This Business Plan identifies a financially viable position based on the assumptions used to 
deliver homes in the borough of Welwyn and Hatfield which are truly affordable to local 
people. 
 

1.2 Our Vision 
 
Now Housing aspires to be an entrepreneurial housing provider, developing and delivering 
exemplary housing. Our vision is to play a dynamic role in increasing the provision of 
genuinely affordable housing in Welwyn Hatfield. 
 
Our overarching objective is to contribute to Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council’s aspirations 
to meet local housing demand by providing the right type of genuinely affordable housing to 
local residents who have lower priority on the Housing Needs Register or who are not 
currently eligible for social rented housing, but who are not able to afford to buy or rent in 
the private market.  In this way Now Housing will complement the council’s provision of 
social rented homes which it delivers through its Housing Revenue Account. 
 
Now Housing will work with developers, registered providers, architects and other housing 
specialists to develop homes and help create communities that will thrive for many years to 
come.  
 
1.3 Strategic Objectives and Aims 
 
The aims of the Now Housing Limited, as set out in the Articles of Association are to: 
 

 Provide good quality, well managed, mixed tenure homes which local 
people can afford to live in and which complement the council’s existing 
and planned housing provision including specialist housing where 
required; 

 Support the growing demand for a mix of housing tenures for residents in 
the borough of Welwyn Hatfield by providing intermediate, low cost home 

Page 64



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

3 
 

ownership or open market homes and letting sub-market and market  
rented homes; 

 Be a financially robust company, generating a profit to be used for the 
purpose of providing more affordable housing and delivering financial 
returns to the shareholder;  

 Stimulate local housing regeneration and partnership working  

.  
Our target is to provide over 380 homes over the next 6 years and seek to continue to 
extend this and provide innovative solutions to support the council’s housing objectives 
more widely. This could include acquisitions from local developments, forward transactions 
of housing from other developers, purchases from existing homeowners and for the future 
joint venture partnerships. 
 
The company will be financially robust, aiming to generate a small profit to be used for the 
purpose of providing more affordable housing and where possible deliver financial returns 
to the shareholder. 
 
1.4 Housing need in Welwyn Hatfield 
 
The council completed a Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) in 2019 and the 

objectively assessed need (OAN) for housing across all tenures has been updated over time 

to reflect the changing context for assessing housing needs. Analysis indicated a need for 

16,000 new homes over the local plan period (up to 2032). The size of homes required 

between 2013 and 2032 (SHMA Update 2017) to accommodate projected household 

growth is set out in the table below [1]:  

1 bed 2 bed 3 bed 4+ beds 

13% 22% 41% 23% 

[1] This information, however is currently being re-assessed and may be subject to change 

 

The revision identified that an even more significant level in housing growth is required 
within the borough since the assessment of 2014; particularly for older people, to respond 
to an ongoing increase in the ageing population as well as accommodating a predicted 
increase in younger new household formation. At the same time it continues to support an 
identified need, within that growth, for a supply of affordable housing.  
 

The council received a report by Savills in 2019 that identified affordability and demand 
issues in Welwyn Hatfield.  The report focused on household income and housing costs 
within the different towns and villages across the borough. The report identified that: 
 

 Data from the borough’s housing needs register shows that 82% of total housing need is 
1 or 2 beds. This is also in line with the English House Survey which shows that 77% of 

Page 65



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

4 
 

private renters, spending >30% of their monthly income on rent, need a 1 or 2 bed 
home. 

 The research showed that there is demand for affordable housing across the borough.  
However in Welwyn Garden City and Hatfield there are large affordability gaps affecting 
households in a narrow range of income bands.  In Welwyn Garden City, the 
affordability gap affects approximately 2,000 households earning between £25,000 and 
£55,000. In Hatfield, around 2,100 households earning between £20,000 and £35,000 
are constrained because they are unable to access either social rented or market priced 
homes. 

 The report has recommended that in order to maximise the potential demand pool for 
an intermediate product, Now Housing should service the needs of the greatest number 
of households over the smallest number of income bands.  

 
Therefore, to complement the work that the council is doing to increase the supply of social 
rented and family sized homes, Now Housing Limited  will seek to address the need for sub 
market housing in around Hatfield and Welwyn Garden City, mainly focusing on one and 
two bedroom properties. 
 
To help reduce the need for households to move home where there is a change in their 
income or life choice, Now Housing will work to develop a new Flex product which will be 
bespoke to Welwyn Hatfield and could have the potential to change the tenure of the home 
to meet the residents’ needs, whilst they continue living there.  Flexrent will be based on 
different price points for rental, starting at local housing allowance rates and progressing up 
towards market rent and Flexbuy will focus on a rent-to-buy product.  Both of these 
products are in development.   
 
For the purpose of this Business Plan, rental income is assumed at local housing allowance 
rates. 
 
1.5 Key Activities 
 
Now Housing will undertake the following activities: 
 

 Progressing schemes on which it has taken an interest in the land, from planning 
consent through detailed and technical design to construction, occupation and into 
management; 

 

 Actively exploring the market for acquisition opportunities from both the open sales 
market but also new housing developments within the area; 
 

 Acquiring homes and land through purchase from the council, including General Fund 
and Housing Revenue Account assets 

 

 Exploring and securing grants, resources and wider opportunities to increase the 
quantum of homes that are delivered, thereby enabling it to make a positive impact 
upon Welwyn Hatfield’s housing supply. 

Page 66



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

5 
 

 

 Engaging with partners and acting as a member of Joint Ventures or Limited Liability 
Partnerships, as required. 
 

 Effectively managing its housing asset, ensuring a comprehensive schedule of planned 
maintenance  

 

 Delivering management and repairs services to its tenants, to the highest possible 
standards and acting as an exemplar to other landlords in Welwyn Hatfield, inspiring 
improved standards across rented homes of all types within the borough 
 

 Promoting and raising the brand profile of Now Housing to promote the benefits of 
quality, affordability and innovation in the delivery of homes to meet current and future 
housing need, with the aim of stimulating provision by private and registered landlords 
alike 

 

 Representing the council in forums with other providers. 
  
 2. DELIVERY 
 
This Business Plan is based on a delivery target of over 380 homes in its first six years. 
There will be various routes to achieving this target, including developing and acquiring 
homes. This plan complements the Housing Delivery Strategy in delivering the number of 
affordable homes within the Borough. All potential acquisitions and developments will have 
gone through the councils Housing Delivery Group where all options would have been 
considered for the sites suitability for discounted market rent to complement HRA 
affordable housing or instead of. 
 
State Aid is an important factor to consider when setting up such a company. It must be 
demonstrated that the company is on an ‘even keel’ with other operators. For example, 
loan terms have to be comparable to the market, but also the ration of funding and equity 
input. Given that this company would be owning and operating sub-market rented 
accommodation the levels of loan financing could be at 100% given its nature and interest 
rates lower than market levels. Hence, the plan assumes a cost of borrowing to the 
company above the cost of borrowing to the council but below market rates. 
 
The financial modelling is launched from 2020/21 and will focus on the initial set up, first 
acquisition and operational costs for Now Housing. 
 
Further acquisitions of properties are planned to commence in 2021/22 and developments 
in 2022/23. 
 
This section details the level of purchases that are in the pipeline, acquisitions assumed and 
potential developments. 
 
 
 

Page 67



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

6 
 

2.1 Completed Projects 
 
Now Housing has completed the acquisition of 12 1 Bedroom flat at Chequersfield in 
Welwyn Garden City and commenced letting these. 
 
2.2 Proposed Projects 
 
The following form the confirmed pipeline for Now Housing Limited. 
 

 Studio 1 Bed Total 

Inspira House 36 18 54 

Swallowfields 8 12 20 

 
Having initially been identified as ideal for an intermediate rental solution, Inspira House in 
Welwyn Garden City is currently in the ownership of the council’s Housing Revenue Account 
(HRA) and is being used as temporary accommodation whilst regeneration works are 
completed on the council’s other TA sites.  The plan will be to transfer the properties to 
Now Housing at an appropriate value once they become void so that they can become a 
Flex product. No SDLT has been modelled on the assumption that group relief will be 
achieved and an allowance for conveyancing costs has been allowed. It is anticipated that 
the acquisition will occur in financial year 2023.24. 
 
Furthermore, Now Housing are in discussions with a developer for a site in Swallowfield of 
an office conversion to provide 8 studio and 12 1 bedroom flats with the potential to 
complete in 2021.22, which have been included within this plan. 
 
 
2.3 Potential Projects 
 
Now Housing will seek to grow from the 74 properties in its pipeline by seeking homes 
through both acquisition and development. These are detailed below: 
 
2.3.1 Open Market Purchases 
 

Year Area 1 Bed 2 Bed Total 

2021/22 Hatfield 10 2 12 

 Welwyn Garden City 6 6 12 

2022/23 Hatfield 10 2 12 

 Welwyn Garden City 6 6 12 

2023/24 Hatfield 10 2 12 

 Welwyn Garden City 6 6 12 

2024/25 Hatfield 10 2 12 

 Welwyn Garden City 6 6 12 

2025/26 Hatfield 10 2 12 

 Welwyn Garden City 6 6 12 

Total  80 40 120 

 

Page 68



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

7 
 

To achieve a high level of growth in property ownership the plan has assumed that Now 
Housing Limited will purchase from the open market. Primarily the target properties will be 
homes formerly owned by the council.  This is because the price will be generally at the 
lower end of the market, the council is likely to own the freehold if the property is leasehold 
and the design and future investment needs are likely to fit within the council’s existing 
maintenance programmes.  A clear set of criteria will be agreed, to ensure that purchases 
are suitable. 
 
However, to ensure that the level of acquisitions assumed in the first six years of operation 
is achieved, the price-points assumed within the business plan are that properties acquired 
will not necessarily be ex-HRA properties, but other properties at the lower price-end of the 
market. When Now Housing seeks to purchase these properties, particularly ex-HRA ones, 
they will be subject to meeting our financial appraisal targets detailed later in this plan. 
 
Now Housing will also be mindful of any possible negative impact that the acquisition 
activity has on the wider market and take any remedial action necessary to mitigate this 
risk. 
 
The modelling assumes a maximum of mid-price purchase point for each property type 
within the assumptions for the financial plan which will allow for some initial improvements 
to the properties but also allowances for SDLT and conveyancing costs. 
 
2.3.2 Purchases from Identified Developments 
 

 Year 1 Bed 2 Bed Total 

Site 1 2022.23 5 5 10 

Site 2 2022.23 3 3 6 

Site 3 2023.24 3 3 6 

Site 4 2023.24 11 11 22 

Site 5 2023.24 25 25 50 

Site 6 2024.25 10 10 20 

Total  57 57 114 

 
Now Housing could seek to purchase properties that will be marketed for sale from 
developers as early as planning approvals are gained. 
 
The above table is from a range of sites that will be coming to market with an assumed 
number of purchases on each, dependant on the overall size of the development. 
 
Assumptions have been made for market values within the plan and additional provision for 
SDLT and conveyancing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

8 
 

2.3.3 Discounted Market Purchases 
 

Year Area 2 Bed 3 Bed 4 Bed Total 

2021.22 Hatfield 2 3 1 6 

 Welwyn Garden City 2 3 1 6 

2022.23 Hatfield 2 3 1 6 

 Welwyn Garden City 2 3 1 6 

2023.24 Hatfield 2 3 1 6 

 Welwyn Garden City 2 3 1 6 

2024.25 Hatfield 2 3 1 6 

 Welwyn Garden City 2 3 1 6 

2025.26 Hatfield - - - - 

 Welwyn Garden City - - - - 

Total  16 24 8 48 

 
In line with the aspirations within the council’s Older Person’s Strategy, Now Housing will 
roll out a Discount Open Market Purchase scheme.  The aim of the scheme is to identify 
older owner occupiers who are under occupying family sized accommodation and have 
expressed a wish to sell their home at an appropriate discount in exchange for an allocation 
of a sheltered housing flat.  This approach fits with the council’s strategic aims for reducing 
under occupation in the borough, thereby making the best use of housing stock. 
 
The discount will be determined by scheme viability and each purchase will be negotiated; 
for the purposes of the model set out in this Business Plan, it has been assumed that a 
discount of 25% on market value will be achieved.  
 
The acquired property will then be let as Flex product to a household in housing need. 
 
Allowances have been made within the modelling for Stamp Duty and Land Tax (SDLT), as 
landlord, and conveyancing costs. 
 
2.3.4 Development 
 
The council will continue to actively seek new development opportunities as part of its 
Affordable Housing Programme and this will be done in partnership with Now Housing, so 
that tenure options for the new homes can be widened.  The mainstay of the council’s 
housing programme will continue to be social rented housing; however Flex products will be 
introduced into the range of homes delivered to meet unmet need within the borough.  In 
this way Now Housing will complement the council’s HRA delivery programme.  
 
Currently there are two development opportunities specifically for Now Housing, as set out 
in the following table:  

 Year 1 Bed 2 Bed Total 

Inspira House – Void Land 2023.24 3 - 3 

Scheme in Welwyn Garden City 2022.23 6 6 12 

Total  9 6 15 

Page 70



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

9 
 

 
An appropriate range of development cost assumptions have been made and no land cost 
implications. 
 
 
 
2.4 Growth beyond the Plan (6 Years) 
 
Whilst this plan identifies the assumed acquisition and development of 386 units, the 
intention is that Now Housing Limited will continue to grow its portfolio in careful 
consideration to the council’s Housing, Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy, and 
Housing Delivery Strategy. 
 
The options available will continue to be open market purchases, the potential for a greater 
number of acquisitions from development sites as a result of land release following the 
Local Plan adoption, but also an extension to the discounted market purchase scheme. 
 
Furthermore, Now Housing Limited will seek to work with the council on sites that will 
become available for development in order to provide the Flex product where this is 
needed. 
 
2.5 Funding and Viability 
 
Now Housing Limited will be 100% loan financed through on-lending by the council. Lending 
will be based on rates that reflect the non-commercial nature of the business of letting 
properties at affordable levels. However, Now Housing is a company limited by shares and 
will not be a registered provider. The financing rates will ensure that both the council and 
Now Housing remain state aid compliant, which is explained in more detail in the risks 
section of this plan. 
 
The funding facility for Now Housing Limited will be agreed on an annual basis through the 
business planning process after both Board and Council approval as part of the budget 
setting process. This will provide certainty in terms of the total amount that can be drawn 
down within a year in order to acquire and develop properties. Towards the beginning of 
the year the actual drawdown mechanism will be agreed as to how the loan facility is drawn 
over the year. The first loan facility has already been drawn down with a specific rate and 
repayment schedule agreed.  
 
Now Housing will assess individual and site based appraisals for all acquisitions and 
developments before entering any agreements to move forward. This will be undertaken 
using proprietary appraisal software along using a pre-set of assumptions including: 
 

 Assumed rent level for the property/area 

 Management costs as per the latest contract 

 Maintenance Costs based on the latest contract and repairs activity for similar 
properties 

Page 71



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

10 
 

 A profile of expected life-cycle costs over a period of 50 years based on existing 
condition 

 Ensuring that the appropriate initial net yield rate is achieved and that the finance 
attributable to the property/development is repaid within a pre-set period. 

 
Development scheme cost assumptions will be benchmarked and informed by professional 
cost consultants, where required, scheme valuation assumptions will be externally sourced 
and supported by an independent RICS accredited valuation report when the scheme is 
ready for approval. 
 
 
3. OPERATIONS  
 

3.1 Management of Properties 
 
Now Housing Limited have a management agreement with the council’s landlord services 
that provide the following services: 
 

 Management Service  

 Re-let Service  

 Maintenance Service 
 
The annual fee payable to the council will be based on a net percentage of rent collected, 
deducted from monthly payments along with the cost of works, reconciled to landlord 
statement. 
 
3.2 Operational Support 
 
In addition to the landlord services the council provides additional support services to the 
company. These will include: 
 

 Financial Services – for the production of annual accounts, up keep of the financial 
systems, management accounts and liaison with the external auditors. 

 Legal Services – for any tenancy issues, conveyancing, acquisition transactions. 

 Communications and Marketing 

 Development Management Services 

 Company Secretary – to provide the company secretary duties and board meeting 
facilitation. 

 Directorate Support – to provide specialist support to Now Housing. 

 Grounds Maintenance – to wholly owned blocks of flats 
 
In addition to these services Now Housing will have an independent valuer for the purposes 
of the annual accounts. 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

11 
 

3.3 Achieving the Business Plan targets through acquisition activity 
 
The council currently has a development team which as part of their responsibilities is 
identifying the opportunities for both development and acquisition for the council’s HRA. 
This will extend to Now Housing through a service level agreement.  
 
The team currently networks with a range of organisations such as registered providers, 
developers that are active in the area, but also direct approaches with alternative 
propositions. Through the council’s acquisitions programme it already has strong links to 
local estate agents.  
 
Any acquisitions programme delivered though the company will need to complement the 
council’s own programme.  
 
With regards to developments that are not Now Housing’s own, i.e. those that are 
progressing in the Borough and potentially within the Local Plan, the council’s development 
team will open discussions with the developers for these sites to identify the potential for 
purchasing properties off-plan. It is likely that number of properties Now Housing would 
seek to purchase would be low in the overall proportion for each development. In all cases 
Now Housing would seek to achieve a lower than market values.  
 
For discounted market purchases, the council already holds a list of homeowners in ex-HRA 
properties who are interested in this scheme. Therefore, there is potentially a pipeline 
already in place. The development team will work with the council’s neighbourhood housing 
team to re-establish a marketing programme to extend this list. 
 
Any potential acquisitions will be subject to stringent tests to ensure that they are 
financially viable and meet housing need. 
 
In order for Now Housing to be agile and responsive to new opportunities which arise, many 
of which may have a short window, Now Housing will have an agreed annual loan facility 
based on the annual business plan. The agreement will allow for such opportunities and will 
effectively replace the provisions for acquisitions for open market purchases, for example.   
Defined procedures and processes will be agreed with the council to enable this to 
transpire, within the parameters of the councils’ treasury management strategy and taking 
into account the approved risk register.  Updates on activity will be reported back to the 
shareholder as part of the quarterly reporting  
 
3.4 Development  
 
The councils’ development team will co-ordinate and manage the development schemes 
included within this plan as per the service level agreement between the council and Now 
Housing, and as part of the Housing Delivery Strategy for delivering more affordable homes, 
will continue to identify and work up sites that are both suitable and viable. The Housing 
Delivery Group will have considered the suitability of the site for discounted market rent 
before more detailed appraisal work is undertaken.  
 

Page 73



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

12 
 

3.5 Rent Policy (Flexrent) 
 
Now Housing will provide flexible tenure and rent levels to allow it to meet local housing 
need and to help promote sustainable communities and successful, thriving families.  This 
will include ensuring that the lowest rent level reflects the Local Housing Allowance (LHA), 
so that households in receipt of Universal Credit/Housing Benefit top-up can afford their 
rent. Now Housing will have a rent policy which reflects this. 
 
For the purposes of this business plan the basis for rental assumptions is the LHA rate with a 
median point used for bedsits which falls between a flat with shared facilities and a 1 
bedroom property. The table below depicts the level of monthly rents assumed for different 
property sizes: 
 
 Studio 1 Bed 2 Bed 3 Bed 4 Bed 

All properties £552 £748 £923 £1,197 £1,396 

The LHA is based on the 2020.21 South East Herts Broad Rental Market Analysis (BRMA) 
published on the Direct Gov website – provided by the Valuation Office Agency.  
 
The LHA levels were revised in April 2020. Therefore, it is anticipated that these will again 
increase. However, we have assumed that these will not increase for April 2021 as a prudent 
assumption. For future increase this plan is cautious, with CPI increases of 2% per annum, 
which is less than the Government’s current social rent policy. 
 
The actual application of the flexrent product will vary where potentially some rents might 
be set lower than those modelled, but this will be offset against those that will be higher 
when the affordability tests are applied.  
 
Now Housing will adhere to procedures to ensure that the net rental income forecast does 
not fall below the agreed annual budget, as per the annual business planning process. This 
will ensure a balanced position when considering rent lent levels for each re-let. 
 

4. FINANCIAL STRATEGY 
 
4.1 Financial Controls & Budgets 
 
The Board will approve a newly formed set of financial regulations devised specifically for 
Now Housing but in-line where possible with the council’s. These establish financial 
controls, authorities and delegations commensurate with the objectives of Now Housing 
‘and the regulatory context within it operates.  
 
Outline budgets will be developed based upon this Business Plan for the development, 
acquisition and overheads each year.  This will identify the financing required as part of the 
annual loan facility agreement. 
 
It is anticipated that early development schemes will require direct and indirect financial 
support from the council to facilitate the developments and to contain risks within 

Page 74



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

13 
 

acceptable parameters.  In determining the type of support to be provided legal and 
contractual requirements will be given full consideration. 
 
The basis of financial viability for each site and acquisition will be agreed by the Board and 
delivery group prior to drawdown of funds, as part of the annual facility, and will be 
regularly monitored throughout the delivery period. 
 
4.2 Funding and Investment Need 
 
This section lays out the cash flows for Now Housing Limited and demonstrates the funding 
required: 
 

£’000 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 

Net Rents 31 449 1,008 2,697 3,478 3,929 

Less:       

Management 3 44 97 271 347 393 

Maintenance 2 35 77 211 271 306 

Overheads (Incl Set Up) 75 63 64 66 67 55 

Net Operating Income -50 307 769 2,149 2,793 3,176 

Less:       

Acquisition/Development 2,452 11,504 15,889 37,900 13,794 5,792 

Interest Charges - 327 812 2,098 2,644 2,939 

Corporation Tax - - - - 18 160 

Funded by:       

Net Loan Finance 2,502 11,524 15,932 37,849 13,663 5,716 

Note: Rounding of Values will cause minor balancing issues in this table 
 
Over this period Now Housing will require c£87.2million in net borrowing in order to 
acquire and develop 383 homes. 
 
Whilst the cash balances will be neutral, Now Housing will not show an operating profit 
(excluding gains on revaluations) until 2023.24 at which point Corporation Tax will be due 
(and payable in the following year). 
 
The accounting financial statements are presented in Appendix 2.  
 
4.3 50 Year Projections 
 
In order to demonstrate financial viability for Now Housing Limited, the graph below 
projects the loan profile over a 50-year period. 
 

Page 75



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

14 
 

 
 
The above graph is based on the amount of surplus cash generated within Now Housing 
being utilised on loan repayments, effectively presenting the loan in a revolving position. It 
also shows the specific loan attributable to Chequersfield, classified as a portfolio loan. 
 
According to the assumptions within the model, loan balances are forecast to be repaid 
within a c53-year period. Actual loan arrangements with varying repayment schedules will 
impact upon the profile above though it would be expected that these would be repaid 
within a 50-year timeframe from being drawdown. 
 
No dividends are forecast to be paid to the shareholder during this period as surplus cash is 
utilised for debt repayment. Therefore, if dividend payments were to be made, this would 
impact upon the duration of the loan period.  
 
A further viability test for Now Housing will be to compare its net asset value against the 
loan profile. This is demonstrated in the graph below: 
 

Page 76



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

15 
 

 
 
Using house price inflation of CPI (2%) the net asset values quickly increase whilst the debt 
balances gradually increase.  The net asset values shown allow for Corporation Tax due on 
the increase of asset value and is held as a liability on the balance sheet until the asset is 
sold or disposed of. The net asset values also reflects cash balances held by Now Housing. 
 
The above two graphs present a viable position for Now Housing, based upon the 
assumptions within this business plan and those that sit behind it. 
 
4.4  Auditing 
 
The Board of Now Housing will appoint an external auditor for the sign-off of annual 
accounts and to provide ad-hoc advice. The auditors will be agreed in consultation with the 
council, which will provide continuity. 
 
As part of its due diligence the council and Board of Now Housing will commission internal 
audits from time to time.  
 
4.5 Risk Management and Mitigation 
 
Now Housing maintains a risk register, in order to support it in monitoring and managing the 
risks associated with all business activities proposed within this Business Plan. 
 
Now Housing has a risk management approach that aims to promote a ‘risk aware’ culture 
which encourages the identification and assessment of risks on a programme level, and then 
assigning ownership for mitigation. Regular risk reporting will operate, to include 
operational and strategic risk review meetings, aimed at setting out and monitoring the 
level of exposure on a programme level. 
 

Page 77



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

16 
 

The risks register reflects the main risks that have been identified by the Board; these are 
risks which could hinder delivery of the proposed development programme or represent 
future financial risks to the council as funder and guarantor of any funding of the 
development programme (and thereafter the new housing stock under management).  The 
risk register forms part of this Business Plan and as such will be approved by the shareholder 
and its representatives as part of the approval process for this Business Plan.  As such, 
monitoring and progress reports to the shareholder will include an update on the risk 
register as part of its monitoring and review process. 
 
 

Page 78



Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 
 
 

APPENDIX A – FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Income & Expenditure 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28 2028.29 2029.30 2030.31 2031.32 2032.33 2033.34 2034.35

Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4 Yr 5 Yr 6 Yr 7 Yr 8 Yr 9 Yr 10 Yr 11 Yr 12 Yr 13 Yr 14 Yr 15

Income:

Rent - Private Sector £32,012 £460,074 £1,033,836 £2,765,714 £3,566,779 £4,030,179 £4,175,184 £4,258,688 £4,343,861 £4,430,739 £4,519,353 £4,609,740 £4,701,935 £4,795,974 £4,891,893

Rent - Shared Equity £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Service Charges £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Voids Loss -£640 -£9,201 -£20,677 -£55,314 -£71,336 -£80,604 -£83,504 -£85,174 -£86,877 -£88,615 -£90,387 -£92,195 -£94,039 -£95,919 -£97,838

Sale Receipts £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Total Income £31,371 £450,873 £1,013,159 £2,710,400 £3,495,443 £3,949,575 £4,091,680 £4,173,514 £4,256,984 £4,342,124 £4,428,966 £4,517,546 £4,607,896 £4,700,054 £4,794,055

Expenditure:

Direct Management Costs -£2,499 -£34,872 -£77,246 -£211,036 -£271,075 -£306,056 -£317,107 -£323,450 -£329,919 -£336,517 -£343,247 -£350,112 -£357,115 -£364,257 -£371,542

Service Charge Costs -£710 -£9,057 -£20,047 -£59,810 -£75,843 -£86,505 -£90,011 -£91,811 -£93,647 -£95,520 -£97,431 -£99,379 -£101,367 -£103,394 -£105,462

Other Rehargeable Costs £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Maintenance Costs -£2,129 -£28,675 -£61,658 -£172,137 -£219,427 -£247,376 -£256,318 -£261,444 -£266,673 -£272,007 -£277,447 -£282,996 -£288,656 -£294,429 -£300,317

Life Cycle Costs £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 -£16,575 -£90,167 -£172,444 -£439,731 -£536,736

Bad Debt Provision Write-Offs -£160 -£2,300 -£5,169 -£13,829 -£17,834 -£20,151 -£20,876 -£21,293 -£21,719 -£22,154 -£22,597 -£23,049 -£23,510 -£23,980 -£24,459

Operations, Administration and Admin Costs -£75,280 -£63,040 -£64,301 -£65,587 -£66,899 -£55,247 -£56,352 -£57,479 -£58,629 -£59,801 -£60,998 -£62,217 -£63,462 -£64,731 -£66,026

Cost of Sales £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Depreciation £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Total Expenditure -£80,778 -£137,944 -£228,421 -£522,398 -£651,077 -£715,335 -£740,664 -£755,478 -£770,587 -£785,999 -£818,294 -£907,920 -£1,006,552 -£1,290,522 -£1,404,542

Operating Surplus -£49,407 £312,929 £784,738 £2,188,002 £2,844,366 £3,234,240 £3,351,016 £3,418,036 £3,486,397 £3,556,125 £3,610,673 £3,609,626 £3,601,344 £3,409,533 £3,389,513

Interest Receivable £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Interest Payable -£97 -£326,598 -£812,316 -£2,098,187 -£2,643,735 -£2,939,170 -£3,036,423 -£3,032,906 -£3,032,258 -£3,025,816 -£3,017,168 -£3,006,777 -£2,996,414 -£2,985,971 -£2,981,818

Net Surplus After Interest -£49,504 -£13,669 -£27,578 £89,816 £200,631 £295,070 £314,593 £385,130 £454,139 £530,309 £593,504 £602,849 £604,930 £423,562 £407,695

Increase in Fair Value of Investment Properties £247,649 £946,611 £293,172 £1,163,478 £1,877,499 £1,238,026 £1,861,954 £1,899,193 £1,937,177 £1,975,921 £2,015,439 £2,055,748 £2,096,863 £2,138,800 £2,181,576

Corporation Tax -£47,053 -£179,856 -£55,703 -£239,538 -£517,154 -£469,731 -£610,464 -£630,274 -£650,479 -£671,089 -£688,961 -£696,421 -£702,659 -£674,183 -£678,507

Surplus (Deficit) for the Year £151,092 £753,085 £209,891 £1,013,755 £1,560,976 £1,063,365 £1,566,083 £1,654,050 £1,740,837 £1,835,141 £1,919,982 £1,962,176 £1,999,134 £1,888,179 £1,910,765

Dividends Payable

Reserves Summary 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28 2028.29 2029.30 2030.31 2031.32 2032.33 2033.34 2034.35

Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4 Yr 5 Yr 6 Yr 7 Yr 8 Yr 9 Yr 10 Yr 11 Yr 12 Yr 13 Yr 14 Yr 15

Surpluses brought forward £0 £151,092 £904,178 £1,114,068 £2,127,823 £3,688,799 £4,752,164 £6,318,247 £7,972,297 £9,713,134 £11,548,275 £13,468,257 £15,430,433 £17,429,566 £19,317,745

Dividends Paid £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year £151,092 £753,085 £209,891 £1,013,755 £1,560,976 £1,063,365 £1,566,083 £1,654,050 £1,740,837 £1,835,141 £1,919,982 £1,962,176 £1,999,134 £1,888,179 £1,910,765

Surplus (Deficit) carried forward £151,092 £904,178 £1,114,068 £2,127,823 £3,688,799 £4,752,164 £6,318,247 £7,972,297 £9,713,134 £11,548,275 £13,468,257 £15,430,433 £17,429,566 £19,317,745 £21,228,510

P
age 79



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Balance Sheet 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28 2028.29 2029.30 2030.31 2031.32 2032.33 2033.34 2034.35

Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4 Yr 5 Yr 6 Yr 7 Yr 8 Yr 9 Yr 10 Yr 11 Yr 12 Yr 13 Yr 14 Yr 15

Fixed Assets

 Properties £2,700,000 £15,064,950 £29,266,605 £69,856,670 £86,067,683 £93,097,717 £94,959,671 £96,858,865 £98,796,042 £100,771,963 £102,787,402 £104,843,150 £106,940,013 £109,078,813 £111,260,390

 Fixed Assets £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

 Other Fixed Assets £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£2,700,000 £15,064,950 £29,266,605 £69,856,670 £86,067,683 £93,097,717 £94,959,671 £96,858,865 £98,796,042 £100,771,963 £102,787,402 £104,843,150 £106,940,013 £109,078,813 £111,260,390

Current Assets

 Properties Under Construction (Rented) £0 £85,928 £2,066,145 £539,594 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

 Inventories (MS) £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

 Debtors:

  Trade Debtors £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

  Other Debtors £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

  Cash and Equivalents £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

£0 £85,928 £2,066,145 £539,594 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Current Liabilities

 Payments Received on Account £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

 Trade Creditors £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

 Amounts Owed to Group Undertakings £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

 Deffered Taxation for Revaulation -£47,053 -£226,909 -£282,612 -£503,673 -£860,398 -£1,095,623 -£1,449,394 -£1,810,241 -£2,178,304 -£2,553,729 -£2,936,663 -£3,327,255 -£3,725,659 -£4,132,031 -£4,546,530

 Taxation for Trading Activities £0 £0 £0 -£18,478 -£160,429 -£234,506 -£256,693 -£269,427 -£282,415 -£295,664 -£306,028 -£305,829 -£304,255 -£267,811 -£264,008

-£47,053 -£226,909 -£282,612 -£522,150 -£1,020,827 -£1,330,128 -£1,706,087 -£2,079,668 -£2,460,720 -£2,849,393 -£3,242,691 -£3,633,084 -£4,029,914 -£4,399,842 -£4,810,538

Total Assets less Current Liabilities £2,652,947 £14,923,968 £31,050,138 £69,874,113 £85,046,856 £91,767,589 £93,253,584 £94,779,197 £96,335,322 £97,922,570 £99,544,712 £101,210,066 £102,910,099 £104,678,971 £106,449,852

Long-Term Liabilities

 Amounts owed to Group Undertakings -£2,501,855 -£14,019,791 -£29,936,070 -£67,746,290 -£81,358,057 -£87,015,425 -£86,935,337 -£86,806,900 -£86,622,188 -£86,374,295 -£86,076,454 -£85,779,633 -£85,480,532 -£85,361,226 -£85,221,342

 Deferred Grant £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

NET LIABILITIES £151,092 £904,178 £1,114,068 £2,127,823 £3,688,799 £4,752,164 £6,318,247 £7,972,297 £9,713,134 £11,548,275 £13,468,257 £15,430,433 £17,429,566 £19,317,745 £21,228,510

Capital and Reserves

 Called up share capital (Land Inv) £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

 Called up share capital (Cash Equity Inv) £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

 Share Premium £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

 Revaluation Reserve £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

 Retained Earnings (Profit & Loss Acc) £151,092 £904,178 £1,114,068 £2,127,823 £3,688,799 £4,752,164 £6,318,247 £7,972,297 £9,713,134 £11,548,275 £13,468,257 £15,430,433 £17,429,566 £19,317,745 £21,228,510

SHAREHOLDER FUNDS £151,092 £904,178 £1,114,068 £2,127,823 £3,688,799 £4,752,164 £6,318,247 £7,972,297 £9,713,134 £11,548,275 £13,468,257 £15,430,433 £17,429,566 £19,317,745 £21,228,510

P
age 80



Classification: Restricted 

 
 

Classification: Restricted 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Cashflow Statement 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28 2028.29 2029.30 2030.31 2031.32 2032.33 2033.34 2034.35

Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4 Yr 5 Yr 6 Yr 7 Yr 8 Yr 9 Yr 10 Yr 11 Yr 12 Yr 13 Yr 14 Yr 15

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities -£49,407 £312,929 £784,738 £2,188,002 £2,844,366 £3,234,240 £3,351,016 £3,418,036 £3,486,397 £3,556,125 £3,610,673 £3,609,626 £3,601,344 £3,409,533 £3,389,513

Interest Received £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Interest Paid -£97 -£326,598 -£812,316 -£2,098,187 -£2,643,735 -£2,939,170 -£3,036,423 -£3,032,906 -£3,032,258 -£3,025,816 -£3,017,168 -£3,006,777 -£2,996,414 -£2,985,971 -£2,981,818

Changes to Other Debtors £0 £0

Changes to Creditors £0 £0

Corporation Tax £0 £0 £0 £0 -£18,478 -£160,429 -£234,506 -£256,693 -£269,427 -£282,415 -£295,664 -£306,028 -£305,829 -£304,255 -£267,811

Net Cash inflow(outflow) from above activities -£49,504 -£13,669 -£27,578 £89,816 £182,153 £134,640 £80,088 £128,437 £184,712 £247,893 £297,841 £296,821 £299,101 £119,306 £139,884

Acquisition & Construction of Properties (PRS & MS) -£2,452,351 -£11,504,267 -£15,888,701 -£37,900,036 -£13,793,920 -£5,792,008 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Major Repairs Capitalised £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Sale Receipts £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Equity / Grants Received £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Equity Repaid £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Net Cash inflow(outflow) from investing activities -£2,452,351 -£11,504,267 -£15,888,701 -£37,900,036 -£13,793,920 -£5,792,008 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Net Cash inflow(outflow) before financing -£2,501,855 -£11,517,936 -£15,916,279 -£37,810,220 -£13,611,767 -£5,657,368 £80,088 £128,437 £184,712 £247,893 £297,841 £296,821 £299,101 £119,306 £139,884

Loans Drawndown £2,501,855 £11,529,576 £15,922,279 £37,820,685 £13,705,931 £5,797,128 £205,275 £210,793 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Loans Repaid £0 -£11,641 -£6,000 -£10,465 -£94,164 -£139,760 -£285,362 -£339,229 -£184,712 -£247,893 -£297,841 -£296,821 -£299,101 -£119,306 -£139,884

Net Cash inflow(outflow) from financing £2,501,855 £11,517,936 £15,916,279 £37,810,220 £13,611,767 £5,657,368 -£80,088 -£128,437 -£184,712 -£247,893 -£297,841 -£296,821 -£299,101 -£119,306 -£139,884

Dividends Paid £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Increase/(Decrease) in Cash £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Opening Cash Balance £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

In-Year Movement £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Closing Cash Balance £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Statement of Reconcillitaion of 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24 2024.25 2025.26 2026.27 2027.28 2028.29 2029.30 2030.31 2031.32 2032.33 2033.34 2034.35

Net Cashflow from Operating Activities: Yr 1 Yr 2 Yr 3 Yr 4 Yr 5 Yr 6 Yr 7 Yr 8 Yr 9 Yr 10 Yr 11 Yr 12 Yr 13 Yr 14 Yr 15

Operating Surplus -£49,407 £312,929 £784,738 £2,188,002 £2,844,366 £3,234,240 £3,351,016 £3,418,036 £3,486,397 £3,556,125 £3,610,673 £3,609,626 £3,601,344 £3,409,533 £3,389,513

Adjustment for Allocation of Land Value £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Adjustment for Conversion of Inventory to Cost of Sales £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Depreciation Adjustment £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0 £0

Net Cashflow from Operating Activities -£49,407 £312,929 £784,738 £2,188,002 £2,844,366 £3,234,240 £3,351,016 £3,418,036 £3,486,397 £3,556,125 £3,610,673 £3,609,626 £3,601,344 £3,409,533 £3,389,513

P
age 81



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 ACTIONS UPDATE
	8 AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROGRAMME UPDATE
	CHP AHP update App A 01 21
	CHP Appendix B AHP Delivery Monitor 01 21

	9 DISABLED FACILITIES GRANT FUNDING AND USE OF BETTER CARE FUND
	10 AIDS AND ADAPTATIONS POLICY
	Item 10 - Aids and Adaptations Policy Final Jan2021

	11 RESPONSIVE REPAIRS SERVICE UPDATE
	Item 11 - Responsive Repairs Service Update 2 March 2020 - Appendix A

	12 WINTER GAS PLAN
	13 NOW HOUSING PERFORMANCE UPDATE
	Item 13 - NOW HOUSING - Performance Report to Cabinet Housing Panel 2 March 2020
	Item 13 - Now Housing Performance report 4 March 2021 Appendix 1
	Item 13 - Now Housing Performance report 4 March 2021 Appendix 2 Business Plan Update as at Dec20
	Item 13 - Now Housing performance report 4 March 2021 Appendix 2a NOW HOUSING LIMITED BUSINESS PLAN v1.11 12 20


